
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

AGENDA 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Monday, July 17, 2023 — 2:00 P.M. 
 

The VCMWD Board of Directors welcomes the public to its Board Room while accommodating 
virtual observation options as a convenience to the public. Additionally, Board Meetings 
continue to be livestreamed for those who wish to observe remotely.  Please note that in the 
event of technical issues that disrupt the meeting livestream or receipt of public comments by 
phone or email, the meeting will continue. 
 

Instructions for members of the public who wish to address the Board of Directors:   
 

Members of the public who wish to address the Board of Directors under “Audience Comments/ 
Questions” or on specific agenda items, may do so as instructed below.  All comments will be 
subject to a limit of three (3) minutes. 
 

• Making Public Comment for Those Attending In-Person:  Members of the public who wish to 
observe or to address the Board may join the Board Members at the noticed, physical location. 
A Request to Speak slip is required to be submitted to the Board Secretary prior to start of the 
meeting (if possible). 

• Phone Comments During the Meeting: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for 
the item closes during the meeting, submit a telephone number by email to the Board Secretary 
at publiccomments@vcmwd.org, together with the agenda item number, and the Board 
Secretary will call when the board is ready to hear public comments;  or 

• Emailed Comments: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for that item closes at 
the meeting, email your comments to the Board Secretary at publiccomments@vcmwd.org 
and the Board Secretary and it will be read aloud at the public comment period; or 

• Written Comments: Written comments can be also be physically dropped off in advance of the 
meeting at the District’s Administrative Office or mailed in advance of the meeting to 29300 Valley 
Center Rd., Valley Center, CA 92082, for receipt no later than 1:00 pm on meeting day. 

These public comment procedures supersede the District’s standard public comment policies and 
procedures to the contrary. If modifications or accommodations from individuals with disabilities are 
required, such persons should provide a request at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting by 
email to the Board Secretary at boardsecretary@vcmwd.org. 
 

Meeting Broadcast: Members of the public may watch the meeting electronically by visiting the 
District’s website at vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents and then clicking the link listed below “live 
stream” on the page. 
 

Meeting Documents: Board Meeting Packets (except for closed session materials) will be made 
available to the public once distributed to the Board. Please visit the District’s website at 
vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents for Agenda and related Board Meeting Documents.  

 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

At its option, the Board may approve the agenda, delete an item, reorder items and add an item to 
the agenda per the provisions of Government Code Section 54954.2. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
 

Comments and inquiries from the audience will be received on any matter not on the agenda, but 
within the jurisdiction of the Board. Comments and inquiries pertaining to an item on the agenda 
will be received during the deliberation of the agenda item (Government Code §54954.3). 

mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:boardsecretary@vcmwd.org
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents


Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  2   July 17, 2023 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM(S) 
 

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action 
is requested by a Board member, staff, or member of the audience. 
 

1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, June 5, 2023; 

2. Survey of Auditing and General Counsel Service Costs and Notification of Annual 
Contractual Fee Increase from General Counsel; 

3. Audit Demands and Wire Disbursements;  

4. Expense Reimbursement Disclosures (4/1/2023–6/30/2023) per Government Code 
Section 53065.5;  

5. Treasurer’s Report for Month Ending May 31, 2023; and 

6. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-22 Correcting a Typographical Error in 
Resolution No. 2023-21. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEM(S) 
 

7. Public Hearing to Consider Approving and Levying the Approved Woods Valley Ranch 

Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Service Area Sewer Service Charges (Service Area 1), 

Sewer Service Charges (Service Area 2), and Grinder Pump Maintenance Charges 

(Service Area 2) on the Property Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2023-2024: 
 

A public hearing will be held to receive comments on collecting the Woods Valley Ranch WRF 
Service Area Sewer Service Charges and Grinder Pump Maintenance Charges on the property 
tax roll for Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-2024. After receiving public comment, Board will close the 
Public Hearing, determine if there is a majority protest and consider adoption of Resolution No. 
2023-23 levying the Woods Valley Ranch WRF Service Area Sewer Service Charges (Service 
Areas 1 & 2), and Grinder Pump Maintenance Charges (Service Area 2) on the property tax 
roll for FY 2023-2024. 

 
a.  Open Public Hearing 

b.  Report by District Engineer 

c.  Questions/Discussion 

d.  Audience comments/questions  

e.  Close Public Hearing 

f.  Discussion 

g.  If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2023-23 
 

1) Exhibit A – Sewer Service Charge – Service Area 1 
2) Exhibit B – Sewer Service Charge – Service Area 2 
3) Exhibit C – Grinder Pump Maintenance Charge – Service Area 2 

 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  3   July 17, 2023 

ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

8. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2023-24 Approving and Levying the Approved 
Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility Service Area Sewer Standby Fees 
(Service Areas 1 & 2) on the Property Tax Roll for FY 2023-2024: 

 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-24 approving and levying the Woods Valley Ranch Water 
Reclamation Facility Service Area Sewer Standby Fees for Service Areas 1 and 2 on the 
property tax roll for FY 2023-2024 will be considered. 

 

a. Report by District Engineer 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2023-24 

1) Exhibit A – Sewer Standby Fee – Service Area 1 
2) Exhibit B – Sewer Standby Fee – Service Area 2 

 
9. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2023-25 Approving and Levying Annual Assessments 

for Assessment District No. 2012-1 on the Property Tax Roll for FY 2023-2024: 
 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-25 approving and levying the annual assessment for 
Assessment District No. 2012-1 (AD 2012-1) on the property tax roll for FY 2023-2024 will be 
considered. 
 

a. Report by District Engineer 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2023-25 

 
10. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2023-26 Approving and Levying Special Taxes for 

Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 on the Property Tax Roll for FY 2023-2024: 
 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-26 approving and levying the annual special taxes for 
Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 on the property tax roll for FY 2023-2024 will be 
considered. 
 

a. Report by District Engineer 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2023-26 

 
11. Consider Approval of Change Order No. 3 to the Construction Contract with Amp 

United, LLC. for the San Gabriel Reservoir Paint and Recoat Project: 
 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-27 approving Change Order No. 3 to the construction contract 
with Amp United, LLC. for the San Gabriel Reservoir Paint & Recoat Project, will be considered. 
 

a. Report by District Engineer 

b. Discussion 

c. Audience comments/questions 

d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2023-27 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  4   July 17, 2023 

12. Consider Approval of Change Order No. 4 to the Construction Contract with Cass 
Construction, Inc. for the Lilac Road Pipeline Replacement Project: 
 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-28 approving Change Order No. 4 to the construction contract 
with Cass Construction, Inc. for the Lilac Road Pipeline Replacement Project will be considered. 
 

a. Report by District Engineer 

b. Discussion 

c. Audience comments/questions 

d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2023-28 

 
13. Request to Adopt Ordinance No. 2023-09 Setting the FY 2023-24 Fixed Charge 

Special Assessments for Unpaid Charges for Water and Other Services: 
 

Adoption of ordinance setting the FY 2023-24 fixed charge special assessments for unpaid 
charges for water and other services will be considered. 
 

a. Report by Director of Finance and Administration 

b. Discussion 

c. Audience comments/questions 

d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Ordinance No. 2023-09 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S ITEM(S) 
 

14. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2023-29 Rescinding Resolution No. 2022-23 to 
Deactivate Provisions of Level 2, Concurring with the General Manager to Deactivate 
Level 1 of the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan, and Preserve 
Implementation of the State Water Resources Control Board Emergency Regulations: 

 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-29 declaring that conditions necessitating increased water 
conservation are no longer in effect, rescinding Resolution No. 2022-23, which enacted provisions 
of the District’s Drought Response Level 2, concurring with the General Manager’s intent to 
deactivate the District’s Drought Response Level 1, and preserving the District’s continued 
implementation of the SWRCB’s Emergency Regulation will be considered. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2023-29 

 
15. San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Board Meeting Summary and Possible Action 

Regarding AB399 (Boerner) Proposing a Countywide Vote on Detachment from the SDCWA: 
 

A report on the SDCWA Board of Directors’ Meeting of June 22, 2023 will be provided as well 
as a discussion on possible action regarding AB399 (Boerner). 

 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  5   July 17, 2023 

16. General Information: 
 

General Informational items will be reviewed. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S ITEM(S) 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ITEM(S) and AB1234 REPORTING 

 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 

 

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider 
litigation, personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client 
privilege. Discussion of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in closed 
session.  Authority: Government Code §54956.9. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: 
 

This agenda was posted at least 72 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible 
to the public. No action may be taken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, 
except as provided by Government Code Section 54954.2. Any written materials provided 
to a majority of the Board of Directors within 72 hours prior to the meeting regarding any 
item on this agenda will be available for public inspection on the District’s website. The 
agenda is available for public review on the District’s website, http://www.vcmwd.org.  
 

For questions or request for information related to this agenda contact Kirsten Peraino, 
Board Secretary, at (760) 735-4517 or publiccomments@vcmwd.org. Upon request, 
this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with 
disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any 
person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in a meeting should direct such request to the Board Secretary at least 48 hours 
before the meeting, if possible. 
 

 

 
— End of Agenda — 

http://www.vcmwd.org/
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org


 

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Monday, June 19, 2023 − 2:00 P.M. 

  

The Valley Center Municipal Water District Board of Directors’ meeting was called to 
order by President Polito at 2:00 PM. In the Board Room at 29300 Valley Center Rd.; Valley 
Center, CA 92082. Additionally, the Board Meeting was livestreamed for those who wish to 
observe remotely.  

 
ROLL CALL 
 

Board Members Present: President Polito, Vice President Ferro, Directors Holtz, Smith, and Ness.  
 

Staff Members Present: General Manager Arant, Director of IT Pilve, District Engineer Grabbe, 
Director of Finance and Administration Pugh, Director of Operations and Facilities Lovelady, 
Manager of Accounting Velasquez, Senior IT Specialist Day, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
Peraino, General Counsel de Sousa, and Federal Consultant Howells (HGR) present in-person. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
 

President Polito established for the record the process by which public comments are received 
by the Board; this process was also described in the Agenda for the meeting. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM(S)  

  

1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, June 5, 2023;  

2. Audit Demands for Check Nos. 166293 ─ 166401 from May 26 ─ June 8, 2023 and Wire 
Disbursements for the Month Ending May 31, 2023;  

3. Bid Results & Request to Approve PO #115436 for Purchase of 1 New 2023 Vehicle; and 

4. Bid Results & Request to Approve PO #115494 for Purchase of 1 New 2023 Vehicle. 
 

Action:  Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ferro; and unanimously carried, the previously 
listed consent calendar items were approved. 

 
ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

5. Adoption of Ordinance No. 2023-06 Amending the District’s Administrative Code Increasing 
Meter Capacity and Annexation Charges:  

 

A second presentation on the proposed increases in Water Meter Capacity (including Specific 
Benefit Area Charges) and Annexation Charges was presented by District Engineer Grabbe. 
An initial review of the proposed updates was presented to the Board at its May 15, 2023 Board 
Meeting. In addition to the San Diego County Water Authority (“SDCWA") Meter Capacity and 
Annexation Charges (which are set independently from the District), the District’s Water Meter 
Capacity Charges are collected for new water meters purchased from the District and a per 
acre District Annexation Charge is collected from properties requesting annexation to the 
District, reminded Mr. Grabbe. 

 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

2 June 19, 2023 

Modifications to the approach since last year included updating the asset values to the current 
replacement cost new less deprecation and updating the equivalent meter count. The last 
adjustment to Meter Capacity and Annexation Charges was approved in February 2022.  Staff 
proposed the following increases, based on estimated water system and non-facility asset 
values as of June 30, 2022: 

 

• 8.83% increase in the Meter Capacity Charges from $5,242 to $5,705 for a ¾-inch meter. 

• An average 4.4% increase in the SBA Charge for the following projects, based on the 
Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index plus an additional year of depreciation: 

o High Mountain (4.80% Increase),  

o Wilkes Rd (6.49% increase), and  

o Via Piedra Waterline Extension (no increase) 

• 7.0% increase in the Annexation Charge, from $1,325 to $1,418 per acre. 
 

Meter Capacity Charges: 
 

The meter capacity charge reflects the costs of providing and maintaining the capacity in the 
water supply and distribution system for the capacity rating of the meter size being purchased. 
These meter capacity charges are developed using a two component buy-in approach; 1) a base 
buy-in component to District wide beneficial facilities and 2) an incremental buy-in component for 
capital improvement projects benefitting specific portions of the District’s service area.  Revenue 
received from the meter capacity charges can be utilized for the replacement, upgrade and 
upsizing of the existing water facilities.   

 

Incremental Charges: 
 

An Incremental Component to the Water Meter Capacity Charge is added for projects that fit 1 of 2 
of the following criteria: 1) Projects constructed by the District that benefit future connections in 
a specific area, or 2) Contributed Capital Projects (Developer Projects with Reimbursement 
Agreements) that benefit future connections in a specific area. In situations where an 
Incremental Component applies, a Specific Benefit Area (SBA) is established and a Specific 
Benefit Area Capacity Charge (SBACC) is separately approved; conceptually during the project 
approval process, based on estimated project costs (with final approval after project is 
completed, when all costs are known). The SBACC is only added to the Meter Capacity Charge 
for new meters, for properties within the SBA.  
 

• District-Funded Projects ─ Incremental Charges have been established for the following 
water facility projects previously funded by the District; High Mountain Waterline, Red 
Ironbark Pump Station, and the Wilkes Road Waterline Extension Project.   
 

o All new connections in the Red Ironbark SBA have been funded, SBACC is complete.  
 

o The High Mountain Drive and Wilkes Road projects are active SBAs. 
 

• Developer-Funded Projects ─ Currently there is one remaining water facility developer 
reimbursement agreement in effect, the Via Piedra Waterline Extension Project. 

 

Annexation Charges: 
 

Annexation Charges are collected from properties requesting annexation to the District. 
Property owners outside of the District have not paid Availability Charges or tax revenues to the 
District, and as such, would need to buy-in to the value attributed to those revenue sources to 
be on an equal basis as customers within the District.  
 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

3 June 19, 2023 

Administrative Code Modifications: 
 

In addition to modifying the Admin Code to reflect the increases in the capacity charges, staff 
proposed two modifications: one to clarify the capacity charge requirements for Accessory Dwelling 
Units (ADUs) and one to clarify reserve requirements for administration of the capacity charges.   
 

• ADUs – The proposed modification to §160.2 indicated that pursuant to state legislation there 
is no additional capacity or connection charge for adding an ADU to an existing service. 
Capacity and connection charges for ADUs constructed with new single-family dwelling units 
would be based on the water meter size required for the new development. 
 

• Capacity Charge Administration – The proposed modification to § 50.2 (a) Reserves clarified 
the administration of “Incremental” and “Buy-In” components of the collected capacity 
charges and approved uses of the collected capacity charges. 

 

The amendments would be effective July 24, 2023 to provide for a 30-day public protest period 
pursuant to Administrative Code §30.12(a). 
 

Action:  Upon motion by Holtz, seconded by Ness; motion to approve the following Ordinance 
passed unanimously: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-06 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AMENDING THE 
FOLLOWING ADMINISTRATIVE CODE ARTICLES: ARTICLE 160 

INCREASING WATER METER CAPACITY CHARGES AND CLARIFYING 
ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT METER REQUIREMENTS, ARTICLE 220 

INCREASING THE ANNEXATION CHARGE, AND ARTICLE 50 
CLARIFYING CAPACITY CHARGE RESERVE REQUIREMENTS 

 

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit: 

  AYES: Directors Polito, Ferro, Holtz, Smith, and Ness 
  NOES: None 
   ABSENT: None 

 

6. Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-20, Recognizing and Congratulation the Santa Fe Irrigation 

District on its 100-Year Anniversary: 
 

On June 21, 2023, the Santa Fe Irrigation District (SFID) will celebrate 100 years of successful 
water delivery to the constituents and communities within its service area. Adoption of VCMWD 
Resolution No. 2023-20 recognizes and honors the SFID for this outstanding accomplishment.  

 

Action:  Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ferro; motion to approve the following Resolution 
passed unanimously: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-20 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT RECOGNIZING AND CONGRATULATING 

THE SANTA FE IRRIGATION DISTRICT ON ITS 100-YEAR ANNIVERSARY 
 

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit: 

  AYES: Directors Polito, Ferro, Holtz, Smith, and Ness 
  NOES: None 
   ABSENT: None 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

4 June 19, 2023 

INFORMATIONAL/POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

7. Adoption of the Operating and Capital Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-24: 
 

In the third presentation of this item to the Board, a review of the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-24 
Budget with an option to adopt was given. Additional information related to the revenue, 
expense, and capital projections for FY 2023-24 to that which was presented on May 1, 2023 
was provided by Manager of Accounting Velasquez. Staff also presented a supplementary 
report at the Board meeting of May 15, 2023 that included an analysis and comparison of the 
proposed Pumping Charge increase. At the end of that presentation, the Board directed staff to 
proceed with incorporating a 17.3% pumping rate increase into the proposed budget. 
 

Since the initial presentation, several changes have been made to the major assumptions.  
Additionally, the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) released its proposed rate increase 
options for Calendar Year (CY) 2024. Using that information, staff determined reasonable rate 
increases to cover passing through the wholesale costs and cover local operating costs: The 
pumping charge increase was changed from 10% to 17.3% as directed by the Board.  This 
increase will ensure that the District is passing through the anticipated pumping Utility Costs 
increases from SDG&E and beginning to close the deficit that currently exists in the Net Pumping 
Revenues, with the goal of closing the gap over the next 6 FYs. The proposed pass-through of 
the SDCWA Infrastructure Access Charge was originally proposed to increase by 1.9% effective 
Jan. 1, 2024.  The updated proposal by SDCWA is a 4.0% increase that would increase the IAC 
for a ¾-inch meter to $4.41/month, that’s up $0.17 from the current rate of $4.24/month. 
 

Staff is projecting that water operating revenues and non-operating revenues will exceed 
projected operating expenses by $346,146, or 0.65% of General Fund Revenues, in the 
proposed FY 2023-24 Budget, with the excess dedicated to capital improvements. New water 
capital appropriations are estimated at $4,707,750 of which $3.8M will be funded with revenues 
collected from general property tax, water availability charges, and capacity charges. The 
remaining $950K will be funded with State Revolving Fund Loan Proceeds.   
 

For the year ending June 30, 2022, the District sold 16,207 acre feet of water.  For the current 
year ending June 30, 2023, it is projected that the District will sell 14,400 acre feet of water 
which is lower than the current budgeted sales amount of 16,500 acre feet and is related to 
both extreme wet weather conditions and the related reduction in agricultural demand. 
Reflecting the general downward trend in water demand, for FY 2023-24 the District budgeted 
water sales at 16,000 acre feet.  Staff believes that the estimate for FY 2023-24 is reasonable 
given the uncertain agricultural environment. 
 

Included in the proposed budget numbers are estimates for rate increases based on the most 
recent information received from the SDCWA regarding their proposed wholesale commodity rates 
options as well as fixed charges.  Using that most recent data, the following estimated rates were 
used to prepare the budget.  Actual rates to be adopted effective February 1, 2024, may differ. 

 
 

  Domestic  PSAWR 

Component 
 

Current Proposed 
% 

Increase   Current Proposed 
% 

Increase 

Imported Water Costs  $2,198.65  $2,420.72 10.1%   $1,605.88 $1744.49 8.6% 

VCMWD   $273.64  $278.57 1.8%   $273.64  $278.57 1.8% 

Total  $2,472.29  $2,699.29    $1,879.52 $2,023.06  

            
Wholesale Rate Increase $222.07 

 
  $138.61 

 

Total Proposed Increase $227.00 
9.2% 

  $143.54 
7.6% 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

5 June 19, 2023 

As a percentage, the Permanent Special Agricultural Water Rate (PSAWR) increase is lower 
because the charges discussed below are not paid by PSAWR customers. Agricultural sales 
are estimated at 60% of the total volume of water sold for FY 2023-24, compared to the prior FY 
estimated agricultural sales of 62%. As of March 31, 2023, there were 637 Certified Agricultural 
customers in the PSAWR program. The PSAWR rate differential is comprised of: 
  

$  148/ AF avoided not paying the SDCWA Supply Reliability Charge; 

$  316 / AF 
avoided paying the MWD supply rate and not paying the melded 
SDCWA melded supply rate; and 

$  212 / AF avoided not paying the SDCWA Storage Charge, for a total of: 

$  676 / AF  
 

The current FY 2022-23 PSAWR rate of discount is $578 per acre foot. 
 

Also included in the water charges the District is required to pay SDCWA and Metropolitan 
Water District (MWD) in 2024 are fixed charges for capacity, readiness to serve, customer 
service, emergency storage, and supply reliability. The District calculates the per-acre-foot 
equivalent of these charges by dividing the total charges by projected water sales, less a 10% 
reserve for sales levels under budgeted amounts. For FY ending 2024 budgeted sales are 
16,000 acre feet and the 2024 projected fixed charges are allocated over 14,400 acre feet. Total 
fixed charges from the SDCWA and MWD are 0.14% lower than estimated actuals for FY 2022-
23, reflecting the continued decline in water sales. 
 

At this time, the District’s local cost component of the water rate, effective February 1, 2024, is 
proposed to be $278.57 per acre foot. This represents an increase of 1.8% over the current rate 
of $273.64. This 1.8% increase generates additional revenue of $78,756 on an annual basis.   
 

The proposed budget includes increasing the monthly water service charges by 1.8%.  This 
1.8% increase would generate additional service charges of approximately $162,576 over a 12-
month period. We propose the increase be implemented on February 1, 2024, concurrent with 
the VCMWD Commodity Rate. This results in proposed service charges as shown below. 
 

Proposed Water Service Charge 
 Water Service Charge Fire Service Charge 

Meter Size Current Proposed Current Proposed 

¾” $   47.46  $   48.31  $   9.94  $   10.11  
1” $   64.84  $   66.00  $   13.91  $   14.16  

1.5” $   97.26  $   99.00  $   20.74  $   21.24  
2” $ 129.69  $ 132.00  $   27.56  $   28.32  
3” $ 194.53  $ 198.00  $   41.49  $   42.48  
4” $ 259.38  $ 264.00    
6” $ 389.07  $ 396.00    
8” $ 518.76  $ 528.00    

 
With these increases, the FY 2023-24 budgeted local operating costs would be covered by 
27.4% with revenue from the Local Commodity Component and 59.6% with the Meter Service 
Fee for a total of 87.0% coverage with Local Revenues alone.  The remaining 13.0% will be 
covered with Non-Operating Revenues, including investment income, lease revenue, and other 
miscellaneous non-operating income. 
 

Total energy costs (electricity, natural gas, and pump & motor maintenance) are estimated to 
increase by 12.8% over the prior FY.  The Pumping Rate Reserve was depleted in FY 2016-17 
and every year since energy costs have exceeded pumping revenues at a rate higher than the 
District could raise rates.    



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

6 June 19, 2023 

There are no changes to the existing wastewater service rates and charges proposed for February 
1, 2024. 
 

There is however one new charge proposed for the Lower Moosa Canyon Wastewater service 
area.  It is a fixed $12 per month per EDU Capital Improvement Charge that along with a $1.1M 
loan from the General Fund is required in order to meet the capital improvement requirements 
outlined in the Moosa Plan (approved by Board Feb. 21, 2023).  The Capital Improvement Charge 
would generate an additional $350,000 in annual net revenues needed to meet the debt service 
requirements to be eligible for funding from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program. 

 

Note: The SDCWA plans to present their rate options to their Board for final adoption on June 22, 
2023. Actual rates to be adopted in June 2023, effective Feb. 1, 2024, may be slightly different. 
 

Staff has determined the need to establish a reserve for the Low Pressure Sewer System (LPS) 
at the Lower Moosa Canyon Water Reclamation Facility Service Area. This reserve will be funded 
with the net revenues from the LPS Charge and it will be utilized for the maintenance and 
replacement of the LPS pumps.  The LPS reserve should provide funds to repair and ultimately 
replace the grinder Low Pressure Sewer pumps. A similar Reserve already exists for the Grinder 
Pumps in the Woods Valley Ranch WRF Fund. 
 

Action:  Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ness; motion to approve the following Resolution 
passed unanimously: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-21 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING 
THE FINAL OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 AND ESTABLISHING CONTROLS ON 
CHANGES IN APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE VARIOUS FUNDS 

 

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit: 

  AYES: Directors Polito, Ferro, Holtz, Smith, and Ness 

  NOES: None 

   ABSENT: None 
 

AND 
 

Action:  Upon motion by Holtz, seconded by Ness; and unanimously carried, the following 
Ordinance was approved: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-07 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AMENDING  

THE ADMIN CODE TO PROVIDE FOR CHANGES IN AUTHORIZED  
STAFFING LEVELS PER THE FY 2023-24 BUDGET AND STAFF  

ORGANIZATION AND TO INCORPORATE CHANGES PER THE APPROVED 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH EMPLOYEES 

 

was adopted by the following vote, to wit: 
      

  AYES: Directors Polito, Ferro, Holtz, Smith, and Ness 
  NOES: None 
   ABSENT: None 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

7 June 19, 2023 

Note: Ordinance No. 2023-07 is an urgency ordinance and shall retroactively take effect (mid-
shift) July 1, 2023, to comply with the M.O.U. with the District Employees’ Association 
adopted by Ordinance No. 2019-04 affecting employee compensation to be effective 
July 1, 2023, mid-shift, and therefore this ordinance must take effect before that date. 

AND 

Action: Upon motion by Ferro, seconded by Smith; and unanimously carried, the following 
Ordinance was approved: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-08 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AMENDING 

ADMIN CODE SECTION 50.2(a) BUDGET POLICIES – RESERVES  
 

was adopted by the following vote, to wit: 
      

  AYES: Directors Polito, Ferro, Holtz, Smith, and Ness 
  NOES: None 
   ABSENT: None 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S ITEM(S) 
 
8. San Diego County Water Authority’s Board Meeting Summary: 

 

San Diego County Water Authority Board Meeting Summary for May 25, 2023 was reviewed. 
 

Action: Informational item only, no action required. 
 

9. General Information: 
 

A review of General Informational items reported on by General Manager Arant. 
 

Action: Informational item only, no action required. 

 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S ITEM(S) 
 

General Counsel de Sousa provided an overview of pending legislation. 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AB1234 REPORT(S) ON MEETING(S) ATTENDED 
 

None 

 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 
 

None 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 

Action:  Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ness; motion to adjourn passed unanimously, the 
regular meeting of the Board of Directors was adjourned at 3:19 PM. 

 

ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 

 
 

____________________________    _____________________________ 
Robert Polito, President              Kirsten Peraino, Secretary 





Agency Name Auditing Firm Previous Fee    
(FY 2021-22)

Current Fee     
(FY 2022-23) Additional Commments

Fallbrook P.U.D. CliftonLarsonAllen LLP $45,000 $45,950

Helix W.D. Eide Bailey $39,378 $26,134 3-Yr Contact ends 2023

Leucadia W.W.D. Rogers, Anderson, Malody & 
Scott, LLP $27,700 $28,750 FY22 2nd year, not to exceed $27,700. 3rd year, not to 

exceed $28,750. Total for 3 years is $84,150.

Olivenhain M.W.D. Pun Group LLP $26,600 $26,600 2-Yr Contract ends 2023, RFP in August 2023

Otay Water District Davis Farr LLP $31,830 Agency did not respond to survey

Padre Dam M.W.D. Pun Group LLP $26,780 $27,583 3 year contract term ends after they complete the FY 
23 audit later this year (with option to extend)

Rainbow M.W.D. Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP $31,110 $32,040

Ramona M.W.D. Davis Farr LLP $19,900 $20,250 3 year contract approved 7/13/2021

Rancho Calif. W.D. Davis Farr LLP $39,250 $40,450 Includes State Controller Reports

Rincon del Diablo M.W.D. CliftonLarsonAllen LLP $21,000 Agency did not respond to survey

Santa Fe Irrigation District The Pun Group LLP $28,000 Agency did not respond to survey

Sweetwater Authority Pun Group LLP $34,000 $34,000 In its 2nd year of the 5-year agreement

Vista I.D. Davis Farr LLP $24,000 $25,000

Valley Center M.W.D. Davis Farr LLP $30,400 $31,000 Davis Farr LLP Awarded Contract on 4/18/2022 for FY 
ending 2022-2026. Single Audit Fee: $4,000. 

Vallecitos W.D. Davis Farr LLP $25,950 Agency did not respond to survey

$30,059.87 $30,705.18

FY 21-22 Avg. Annual 
Auditing Service Fee

FY 22-23 Avg. Annual 
Auditing Service Fee



Agency Name Counsel/Legal Firm
Current Hourly Rate 

PARTNER          
(FY 2022-23)

Additional Commments

Fallbrook P.U.D. Paula de Sousa, Best, Best, & Krieger (BBK)  $                         303.00 Partner $303  |  Associate $274  |  Paralegal $185

Helix W.D. Elizabeth Hull & Scott Smith / BBK  $                         305.00 Monthly Retainer $11,204  ($305/hr services outside 
retainer)

Olivenhain M.W.D. Alfred Smith, Nossaman LLP  $                         330.56 Total: $289,906  |  General: $164,844 (thru March 2023)

Padre Dam M.W.D. BBK  $                         289.00 Partner $289/hr  |  Associate $259/hr  |  Paralegal $169/hr

Rainbow M.W.D. Alfred Smith, Nossaman LLP  $                         355.00 $355/hr up to 420 hours per year - $325/hr for 420+ hrs

Ramona M.W.D. Jennifer Lyon, McDougal Love et al  $                         200.00 

Rancho Calif. W.D. Jim Gilpin, BBK  $                         312.00 

Rincon del Diablo M.W.D. Alfred Smith, Nossaman LLP  $                         365.65 

Santa Fe ID Paula de Sousa, BBK  $                         300.00 Partner $300/hr  |  Associate $275/hr  |  Paralegal $185/hr

Sweetwater Auth. Paula de Sousa, BBK  $                         297.00 Partner $297/hr  |  Associate $261/hr  |  Paralegal $166/hr

Vallecitos W.D. Jim Gilpin & Nick Norvell, BBK  $                         289.00 Partner $289/hr  |  Associate $262/hr

Valley Center M.W.D. Paula de Sousa, BBK  $                         305.00 Partner $305  |  Associate $275  |  Paralegal $163

Vista I.D. Elizabeth Mitchell, Burke, Williams & Sorrensen  $                         240.00 $290/hour for special counsel services

$299.32 

FY 22-23 Avg. General     
Counsel Hourly Rate



60033.00100\41421800.1 
 

  

 

 

Paula C. P. de Sousa
Partner

(619) 525-1328
paula.desousa@bbklaw.com

Best Best & Krieger LLP | 655 West Broadway, 15th Floor, San Diego, California  92101 
Phone: (619) 525-1300 | Fax: (619) 233-6118 | bbklaw.com 

June 27, 2023 

CONFIDENTIAL 
VIA E-MAIL 

Gary Arant, General Manager 
Valley Center Municipal Water District 
P.O. Box 67 
Valley Center, CA  92082 

Re: Increase in Hourly Rates 

Dear Gary: 

In accordance with our Agreement for General Counsel Services of January 1, 2014, Valley 
Center’s hourly rates are to adjust on July 1st of each year, in accordance with the All Urban 
Consumer San Diego County Price Index.  The Index has increased by 7.7% since the last 
adjustment.  Therefore, the hourly rates for FY 2023-2024 will be: 

Basic Services: 
      Current Rate  New Rate 
 Partner/Of Counsel   $305 per hour  $328 per hour 
 Associate Attorneys:   $275 per hour  $296 per hour 
 Paralegal:    $163 per hour  $176 per hour 

Special Services: 
      Current Rate  New Rate 
 Partner/Of Counsel    $337 per hour  $363 per hour 
 Associate Attorneys:   $305 per hour  $328 per hour 
 Paralegal:    $175 per hour  $188 per hour 

The rates will be adjusted effective on July 1, 2023. 

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call.  Also, I would like to reiterate 
that it is a pleasure to serve as your counsel. 

 Sincerely, 
 

Paula C. P. de Sousa 
of BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 
 



























































VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S REPORT - SUMMARY

May 31, 2023

ACTIVE DEPOSITS

Checking Accounts

Deposits with Fiscal Agents

TOTAL ACTIVE DEPOSITS

Cost Basis

$974,908.64

S974.9Q8.64

INVESTMENTS

Money Market Funds
U.S. Treasury Notes

Federal Agencies Securities
Certificates of Deposit, insured

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

Market

Value

$20,766,341.40

741,886.90

7,442,049.80

1.850.510.23

$30.800.788.33

Average
Yield

3.52%

0.88%

2.34%

1.20%

3.03%

Percent

67.246%

2.349%

24.344%

6.062%

100.000%

$21,392,577.72

747,156.32

7,744,311.70

1.928.366.69

$31.812.412.43

TOTAL ALL FUNDS

TOTAL ALL FUNDS (PRIOR MONTH - APRIL 2023)

$32.787.321.07

$33,004,824.73

Maturity Analysis ofInvestments

Money Market Funds

Maturity within one year

Maturity later than one year

Total Investments

Weighted Average Days to Maturity
Maximum permitted single investment maturity is 5 years.

Percent

67.246%

15.426%

17.328%

100.000%

148

Cost Basis

$21,392,577.72

4,907,299.22

5.512.535.49

$31.812.412.43

Yield Comparatives

Securitv

LAIF

T Bills

T Bills

Term

1 day

3 months

6 months

Yield

2.993%

5.310%

5.270%

Securitv Term

12 mo. rolling T Bond 1 year

T Bonds 1 year

T Bonds 2 years

Yield

4.146%

4.910%

4.130%

Sufficient funds are available to meet the next six month's expenditure requirements. All investments are in compliance with the
District's adopted statement of investment policy. Market values for the Governmental / Federal Securities
and Certificates of Deposit were provided by Zions Capital Advisors.

gh, Treasurerby James V.

06/27/23

Revie'

06/27/23

by Gary T. Aranl, General Manager Date

Page 1



ACTIVE DEPOSITS Cost Basis
Checking Accounts:

California Bank & Trust $969,634.64
California Bank & Trust $3,874.00
Petty Cash $1,400.00

$974,908.64

INVESTMENTS Face Value Purchase Maturity Market Current
or Rating Date Date Value Yield

   Money Market Funds:
Local Agency Investment Fund $351,632.36 2.99% $351,632.36
County of San Diego Investment Fund $20,331,058.08 3.52% 20,957,294.40
Zions Institutional Liquidity Management $83,650.96 5.00% 83,650.96

$20,766,341.40 3.52% $21,392,577.72
  U.S. Treasury Notes:  

U S Treasury Notes 1.250% 500,000               05/06/22 07/31/23 496,672.05 1.26% 497,252.38
U S Treasury Notes 0.125% 250,000               05/20/21 10/15/23 245,214.85 0.13% 249,903.94

$741,886.90 0.88% $747,156.32
  Federal Agencies Securities - CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank 

Federal Home Loan Mrtg Corp 0.40% 250,000 09/18/20 02/26/24 240,978.46 0.40% $250,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 0.50% 250,000 08/30/21 08/28/24 235,614.26 0.50% 250,000.00
Federal Farm Credit Bank 0.44% 250,000 11/04/20 11/04/24 233,502.35 0.44% 250,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 0.625% 250,000 05/27/21 02/27/25 231,445.49 0.63% 250,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 0.80% 250,000 07/21/21 07/21/25 229,979.61 0.80% 250,000.00
Federal Home Loan Bank 3.25% 500,000 08/22/22 08/22/23 497,553.13 3.25% 500,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 1.00% 500,000 03/10/22 09/29/23 495,005.09 2.25% 500,000.00
Federal Farm Credit Banks 3.49% 1,000,000 06/22/22 12/22/23 989,146.54 3.49% 1,000,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 5.00% 250,000 01/09/23 01/10/24 249,067.29 5.00% 250,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 5.15% 200,000 05/08/23 02/08/24 199,635.12 5.15% 200,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 1.50% 500,000 03/28/22 03/28/24 487,689.90 2.25% 500,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 0.50% 250,000 03/24/21 09/24/24 234,873.29 0.50% 250,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 0.50% 250,000 09/30/21 09/30/24 234,709.36 0.50% 250,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 1.00% 500,000 03/10/22 12/10/24 482,691.91 2.03% 499,599.70
Federal Home Loan Banks 0.40% 250,000 02/18/21 02/18/25 230,722.02 0.40% 250,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 0.625% 250,000 05/27/21 02/27/25 231,450.17 0.63% 250,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 2.15% 500,000 03/14/22 03/14/25 475,253.01 2.15% 500,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 6.00% 300,000 03/30/23 03/27/25 299,041.95 6.00% 300,000.00
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.15% 480,000 01/27/23 01/27/26 474,745.06 5.17% 479,712.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 0.80% 350,000 03/16/21 03/16/26 314,357.02 0.80% 350,000.00
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.00% 40,000 04/24/23 04/24/26 39,373.68 5.00% 40,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 1.00% 125,000 06/30/21 06/30/26 112,164.50 1.00% 125,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 1.05% 250,000 10/15/21 10/15/26 223,050.59 1.05% 250,000.00

$7,442,049.80 2.34% $7,744,311.70
  Certificates of Deposit - CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank 

UBS Bank 0.25% 125,000               07/15/21 07/14/23 124,245.84 0.25% 124,989.44
Raymond James Bank 1.95% 245,000               08/23/19 08/23/23 243,098.22 1.95% 244,968.52
BMW Bank North Amercia 0.35% 245,000               09/27/21 09/25/23 241,141.35 0.36% 244,937.87
Cit Bank 3.30% 100,000               05/06/19 10/30/23 99,167.82 3.24% 100,247.07
Centerstate Bank 1.05% 245,000               04/30/20 04/30/24 235,602.17 1.05% 245,000.00
Medallion Bank 0.40% 245,000               07/29/21 07/22/24 231,557.10 0.45% 244,655.59
Synchrony Bank 0.55% 125,000               09/03/21 09/03/24 117,739.55 0.55% 125,000.00
UBS Bank 3.00% 120,000               05/11/22 11/12/24 116,095.36 3.03% 119,926.67
Morgan Stanley 1.50% 230,000               07/27/20 04/16/25 214,612.59 1.12% 233,882.86
HSBC Bank 1.30% 245,000               05/08/20 05/07/25 227,250.23 1.32% 244,758.67

$1,850,510.23 1.20% $1,928,366.69

Average
       TOTAL  INVESTMENTS $30,800,788.33 3.027% $31,812,412.43

       TOTAL  ALL  FUNDS $32,787,321.07

May 31, 2023

TREASURER'S REPORT - DETAIL

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Page 2



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S REPORT - GRAPHS

44,867.00

May 31, 2023

$10
$12
$14
$16
$18
$20
$22
$24
$26
$28
$30
$32
$34
$36
$38
$40
$42
$44
$46
$48

$10
$12
$14
$16
$18
$20
$22
$24
$26
$28
$30
$32
$34
$36
$38
$40
$42
$44
$46
$48

M
a
y
 2

0
1
3

N
o
v
 2

0
1

3

M
a
y
 2

0
1
4

N
o
v
 2

0
1

4

M
a
y
 2

0
1
5

N
o
v
 2

0
1

5

M
a
y
 2

0
1
6

N
o
v
 2

0
1

6

M
a
y
 2

0
1
7

N
o
v
 2

0
1

7

M
a
y
 2

0
1
8

N
o
v
 2

0
1

8

M
a
y
 2

0
1
9

N
o
v
 2

0
1

9

M
a
y
 2

0
2
0

N
o
v
 2

0
2

0

M
a
y
 2

0
2
1

N
o
v
 2

0
2

1

M
a
y
 2

0
2
2

N
o
v
 2

0
2

2

M
a
y
 2

0
2
3

Total Investment Portfolio
in Millions

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

M
a
y
 2

0
1
3

N
o
v
 2

0
1

3

M
a
y
 2

0
1
4

N
o
v
 2

0
1

4

M
a
y
 2

0
1
5

N
o
v
 2

0
1

5

M
a
y
 2

0
1
6

N
o
v
 2

0
1

6

M
a
y
 2

0
1
7

N
o
v
 2

0
1

7

M
a
y
 2

0
1
8

N
o
v
 2

0
1

8

M
a
y
 2

0
1
9

N
o
v
 2

0
1

9

M
a
y
 2

0
2
0

N
o
v
 2

0
2

0

M
a
y
 2

0
2
1

N
o
v
 2

0
2

1

M
a
y
 2

0
2
2

N
o
v
 2

0
2

2

M
a
y
 2

0
2
3

Investment Portfolio Composition

L.A.I.F. S.D. Co. Treasurer Money Market CDs Govt./Fed. Securities

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

Page 3



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S REPORT - GRAPHS

44,867.00

May 31, 2023

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

M
a
y
 2

0
1
3

N
o
v
 2

0
1

3

M
a
y
 2

0
1
4

N
o
v
 2

0
1

4

M
a
y
 2

0
1
5

N
o
v
 2

0
1

5

M
a
y
 2

0
1
6

N
o
v
 2

0
1

6

M
a
y
 2

0
1
7

N
o
v
 2

0
1

7

M
a
y
 2

0
1
8

N
o
v
 2

0
1

8

M
a
y
 2

0
1
9

N
o
v
 2

0
1

9

M
a
y
 2

0
2
0

N
o
v
 2

0
2

0

M
a
y
 2

0
2
1

N
o
v
 2

0
2

1

M
a
y
 2

0
2
2

N
o
v
 2

0
2

2

M
a
y
 2

0
2
3

Weighted Average Days to Maturity

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

M
a
y
 2

0
1
3

N
o
v
 2

0
1

3

M
a
y
 2

0
1
4

N
o
v
 2

0
1

4

M
a
y
 2

0
1
5

N
o
v
 2

0
1

5

M
a
y
 2

0
1
6

N
o
v
 2

0
1

6

M
a
y
 2

0
1
7

N
o
v
 2

0
1

7

M
a
y
 2

0
1
8

N
o
v
 2

0
1

8

M
a
y
 2

0
1
9

N
o
v
 2

0
1

9

M
a
y
 2

0
2
0

N
o
v
 2

0
2

0

M
a
y
 2

0
2
1

N
o
v
 2

0
2

1

M
a
y
 2

0
2
2

N
o
v
 2

0
2

2

M
a
y
 2

0
2
3

Yield Comparisons
in Percentages

VCMWD LAIF Int. 12-mo. rolling T-Bond

Page 4



INVESTMENTS PURCHASED

Purchase Maturity Face Expected
Date Security Date Cost Value Yield

CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank 

08/22/22 Federal Home Loan Banks 3.25% 08/22/23 500,000.00 500,000.00 3.250%

08/30/22 Federal Home Loan Banks 3.15% 02/23/23 200,000.00 200,000.00 3.150%

12/30/22 Federal Home Loan Banks 5.20% 12/18/23 100,000.00 100,000.00 5.200%

01/09/23 Federal Home Loan Banks 5.00% 01/10/24 250,000.00 250,000.00 5.000%

01/27/23 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.15% 01/27/26 480,000.00 480,000.00 5.150%

03/30/23 Federal Home Loan Banks 6.00% 03/27/25 300,000.00 300,000.00 6.000%

04/24/23 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.00% 04/24/26 40,000.00 40,000.00 5.000%

05/08/23 Federal Home Loan Banks 5.15% 02/08/24 200,000.00 200,000.00 5.150%

INVESTMENTS MATURED

Purchase Maturity Face Yield to

Date Security Date Cost Value Maturity

CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank 

07/01/20 New York Comenity 0.35% 07/05/22 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.350%

12/16/20 Federal Home Loan Mrtg Corp 0.20% 12/16/22 200,000.00 200,000.00 0.200%

05/20/22 U S Treasury Notes 2.125% 12/31/22 500,000.00 500,000.00 2.125%

12/30/22 Federal Home Loan Banks 5.20% 02/21/23 100,000.00 100,000.00 5.200%

08/30/22 Federal Home Loan Banks 3.15% 02/23/23 200,000.00 200,000.00 3.150%

04/18/19 Goldman Sachs 2.70% 04/17/23 248,000.00 248,000.00 2.700%

JULY 1, 2022 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2023

TREASURER'S REPORT - TRANSACTIONS

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Page 5

























































































































































































July 17, 2023 

 
TO:  Honorable President and Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Gary Arant, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  RESCIND RESOLUTION NO. 2022-23 TO DEACTIVATE PROVISIONS OF 

LEVEL 2 AND CONCURRING WITH THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 
DEACTIVATE LEVEL 1 OF THE DISTRICT’S WATER SHORTAGE 
CONTINGENCY PLAN, AND PRESERVE THE DISTRICT’S CONTINUING 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL 
BOARD (SWRCB) EMERGENCY REGULATIONS 

 
PURPOSE: 
 

To provide the Board an opportunity to review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2023–29: 
(1) declaring that conditions necessitating increased water conservation are no longer in effect, 
and (2) rescinding Resolution No. 2022-23, which enacted provisions of the District’s Drought 
Response Level 2, while continuing to comply with the State Water Resource Control Board 
(SWRCB) Emergency Regulation’s prohibition of wasteful water uses, and (3) concurring with 
the General Manager’s intent to deactivate the District’s Drought Response Level 1. 

 
SUMMARY: 
 

Thanks to the wet winter and the conservation measures implemented in 2021, the imported 
water supply and State Water Project reservoir levels have seen a positive shift, resulting in the 
lifting of many drought-related conservation regulations. The SWRCB Emergency Regulations 
regarding the implementation of demand reduction actions expired June 10, 2023, Governor 
Newsom issued Executive Order N-5-23 terminating some of the drought emergency 
provisions, and the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Board rescinded Resolution 
No. 2021-24 on June 22, 2023 deactivating Level 1 and provisions of Level 2 of their Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan. Now that the majority of the state mandated conservation 
regulations have been lifted, the District can now contemplate rolling back its drought-related 
restrictions. 
 

To understand the progress made since the drought regulations were put in place, here's a 
summary of the actions taken by the Governor, SWRCB, SDCWA, and the Valley Center 
Municipal Water District (VCMWD or “District”) Board thus far: 
 

Voluntary 15% Conservation/Level 1 of Water Shortage Contingency Plan Enacted: 

• July 8, 2021: In response to the worsening drought conditions statewide, Governor Newsom 
issued Executive Order (EO) N-10-21, calling on the state to voluntarily conserve 15% 
compared to 2020 water use. 

• October 18, 2021: VCMWD Board concurred with the GM in declaring a Drought Response 
Level 1 of the District’s Water Use Efficiency and Drought Response Program. 

• October 28, 2021: In response to EO N-10-21, the SDCWA adopted Resolution No. 2021-
24 – Activating Level 1 of the its Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP). 

 





 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-29 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT RESCINDING 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-23 DEACTIVATING PROVISIONS OF 

LEVEL 2 AND CONCURRING WITH THE GENERAL MANAGER 
TO DEACTIVATE LEVEL 1 OF THE WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY 
PLAN, AND PRESERVING IMPLEMENTATION OF THE STATE WATER 

RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD EMERGENCY REGULATIONS 
 

 

WHEREAS, on October 19, 2021, Governor Newsom proclaimed a drought  state of 
emergency in several counties, including the County of San Diego, thereby extending the 
drought state of emergency proclaimed in drought proclamations on April 12, 2021, May 10, 
2021, and July 8, 2021 statewide, reaffirmed the call for local agencies to voluntarily reduce 
water use by 15 percent compared to 2020 to protect water reserves and complement local 
conservation mandates by implementing the measures contained in Executive Order N-10-
21, and authorized the State Water Resources Control Board (“SWRCB”) to adopt emergency 
regulations prohibiting certain wasteful water practices; and 

 

WHEREAS, Governor Newsom’s State of Emergency Proclamation acknowledged 
that the State of California was experiencing critically dry conditions, in part due to 
consecutive years of exceptionally low precipitation, snowpack, and runoff resulting in near 
record low storage in California’s largest reservoirs; and 

 

WHEREAS, on October 18, 2021, the Valley Center Municipal Water District’s 
(“VCMWD”) Board of Directors concurred with the General Manager’s declaration of a 
Drought Response Level 1 of the District’s Water Use Efficiency and Drought Response 
Program; and 

 

WHEREAS, on January 4, 2022, the SWRCB adopted Emergency Regulation – 
Prevention of Drought Wasteful Water Uses, prohibiting certain wasteful water uses, and 
readopted such regulation on December 7, 2022 to remain effective until December 21, 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 28, 2022, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-7-22 
directing the SWRCB to adopt Emergency Regulations implementing the provisions of 
Executive Order N-7-22; and 
 

WHEREAS, on May 24, 2022, the SWRCB adopted a second Emergency Regulation 
– Prevention of Drought Wasteful Water Uses, directing urban water suppliers to file a 
Preliminary Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment with the Department of Water 
Resources (“DWR”) by June 1, 2022, and implement water demand reduction provisions 
under Level 2 of each agency’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan by June 10, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, in compliance with Executive Order N-7-22 and the SWRCB Emergency 
Regulation, VCMWD did complete and timely file the Preliminary Annual Water Demand and 
Supply Assessment with DWR by June 1, 2022 indicating that VCMWD would have adequate 
supplies from its wholesale water supplier, the San Diego County Water Authority (“SDCWA”), 
to meet all of its domestic, commercial, industrial, institutional and agricultural water demands 
for Fiscal FY 2022-2023 and that no actual demand reduction of any percentage or supply 
augmentation measures of any amount were needed for FY 2022-2023; and 



 

Resolution No. 2023-29  Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, under Executive Order N-7-22 and the Emergency Regulation, the 
District was required to implement demand reduction actions identified in its Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan for a shortage level of ten to twenty percent by June 10, 2022; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of VCMWD adopted Resolution No. 2022-23 
(Attachment A) on June 6, 2022, activating the provisions of Drought Reduction Level 2 in 
compliance with the Emergency Regulations and N-7-22, which also resulted in the provisions 
of Drought Level Reduction 1 becoming mandatory; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District has adopted a Water Shortage Contingency Plan under the 
Urban Water Management Planning Act; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan, the District 
may take action by resolution to declare, change, and rescind, as applicable, the particular 
requirements of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, water supply conditions in the State Water Project and Colorado River 
Watersheds have continued to improve and the levels of rainfall, snowpack, snow water 
content levels and reservoir levels are trending such that there is no longer a water shortage 
condition necessitating the implementation of the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Level 2; and  
 

WHEREAS, recent rains in the San Diego Region have significantly reduced regional 
drought impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, vast improvement in water supply conditions on the State Water Project, 
the Colorado River and in the San Diego region, as well as the availability of regional and 
local drought resilient supplies, such as transfers, wastewater recycling and seawater 
desalination, the SDCWA and its member retail agencies can likely self-certify to even higher 
levels of water supply availability and reliability for the next three years; and 

 

WHEREAS, in March 2023, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-5-23 
terminating some of the drought emergency provisions;  and 
 

WHEREAS, VCMWD completed and timely filed a Preliminary Water Demand and 
Supply Assessment with DWR by June 1, 2023 indicating that VCMWD would have adequate 
supplies from its wholesale water supplier, the SDCWA, to meet all of its domestic, 
commercial, industrial, institutional and agricultural water demands for FY 2023-2024 and 
that no actual demand reduction of any percentage or supply augmentation measures of any 
amount were needed for FY 2023-2024; and 
 

WHEREAS, there may still be limited or isolated pockets of drought, water supply 
shortfall, and over-drafted groundwater basins in the state, there certainly does not exist a 
statewide drought emergency which prompted the Governor to take his decisive and 
appropriate executive actions with Executive Orders N-10-21 and N-7-22; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 22, 2023, the SDCWA Board of Directors rescinded Resolution 
No. 2021-24 (Attachment B) effective July 1, 2023, thereby deactivating Level 1 of the its 
WSCP and rescinding the request therein for its member agencies to implement the 
voluntary provisions of their Water Shortage Contingency Plans; and 

 
 



 

Resolution No. 2023-29  Page 3 of 3 

WHEREAS, the General Manager intends to deactivate the District’s Drought 
Response Level 1. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Valley Center 
Municipal Water District hereby RESOLVES, DETERMINES, and ORDERS as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.   Incorporation of Recitals. All of the foregoing Recitals are true and 
correct, and the Board so finds and determines. The Recitals set forth 
above are incorporated herein and made an operative part of this 
Resolution. 

 

SECTION 2.   Conditions necessitating increased water conservation measures are 
no longer in effect. 
 

SECTION 3. Resolution No. 2022-23, which implemented provisions of Drought 
Response Level 2, made the provisions of Drought Response Level 1 
mandatory, and implemented additional water conservation measures, 
is hereby rescinded.  

 

SECTION 4.  The District shall continue to comply with the provisions of Executive 
Order No. N-7-22 and the SWRCB Emergency Regulations still in effect, 
such as the prevention of wasteful water uses. 

 

SECTION 5.   The Board of Directors hereby concurs with the intention of the General 
Manager to deactivate the District’s Drought Response Level 1. 

  

PASSED AND ADOPTED, at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Valley 
Center Municipal Water District held on the 17th day of July, 2023, by the following vote: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ATTEST:   _____________________________ 
               Robert Polito, Board President 
 
____________________________ 
 Kirsten Peraino, Board Secretary 









kperaino
Typewritten Text

kperaino
Typewritten Text

kperaino
Typewritten Text

kperaino
Typewritten Text

kperaino
Typewritten Text











 

 
 

July 17, 2023 

 
TO:  Honorable President and Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Gary Arant, General Manager  
 
SUBJECT:  AB 399 (BOERNER) AND SDCWA BOARD MEETING SUMMARY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
  









                                                                     May 2023 
July 17, 2023                                                             1                                                Status Report                                                      

July 17, 2023 
 
 
TO:  Honorable President & Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Gary T. Arant, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: DISTRICT STATUS REPORT – MAY 2023 
  
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To provide the Board with a status report on District operations, activities and projects. 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
For the month of May 2023, the following reports are presented by the Operations, 
Engineering, Finance, IT and General Administration Departments: 
 

I. OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT:   
 

A. WATER / WASTEWATER DIVISION:    FY FY 
     MAY   MAY 2022-23 2021-22 

Water Operations     2023  2022  to Date  to Date 
   Flow (average cfs) 18.81 27.89 17.06 23.46 

Total Rainfall (inches) 0.78 0.03 25.05 10.35 

Average 24 Hr. Temp. (F) 60 63 55 63 

   Average High Temp. (F) 69 75 66 76    
 
 

  Water Purchases (A.F.) 1,156.58   1,713.00 12,410.81 15,471.35 
 

  
  Budgeted Projected Actual 
     2022-23    2022-23 2021-22 

  Water Sales (A.F.)  16,500.0 13,500.0 16,207.0 
 

 
     F.Y. 

  APR MAR 2022-23 
  Power Purchases   2023  2023   to Date 

Electricity and Natural Gas 
Total kWh Purchased  354,297 330,984 6,351,927 
Avg. Cost/kWh  $0.300175 $0.315343 $0.239355 
Total Therms Purchased  10,136 10,402 336,742 
Avg. Cost/Therm  $1.17144 $1.45677 $1.56504 
 
 



Project Start Date

kWh 

Produced  

APR 2023

Savings 

from Solar           

APR 2023

CSI Rebate 

APR 2023

kWh 

Produced 

Fiscal Year

Savings 

from Solar                 

Fiscal Year

CSI 

Rebate 

Fiscal 

Year

kWh 

Produced      

To Date

Savings 

from Solar               

To Date

CSI Rebate    

To Date

Lake Turner 1/1/2009 126,703
Not 

Available
872,431

Not 

Available
24,208,113 $443,357

Tyler Pump Station 6/3/2013 8,551 $2,223 69,081 $15,609 874,883 $174,286 $61,739

Circle R Pump Station 11/13/2013 8,584 $2,232 70,069 $15,855 884,538 $176,958 $68,201

Cobb Reservoir 4/1/2015 5,546 $1,442 42,656 $9,635 447,552 $90,571 $37,481

MJM Pump Station 6/1/2015 4,549 $1,183 36,260 $8,186 369,161 $75,225 $32,525

Cool Valley Pump Station 3/23/2016 15,557 $4,045 103,644 $23,847 1,084,004 $226,409

Miller Pump Station 7/1/2016 11,341 $2,949 92,136 $20,784 764,273 $158,865

TOTALS 180,831 $14,074 $0 1,286,277 $93,916 $0 28,632,524 $1,345,671 $199,946

$1,545,617

9,220

SDG&E CO2e Factor 0.322

23,461 Value:

+ 72 +

23,533

504

$34,584.60

RENEWABLE ENERGY PROGRAM

Total Program Cost Savings

Total Metric Tons of CO2e Offset by Renewable Energy Production

Total Renewable Energy Credits Sold: $34,080.60



!P
!P

!P !P

^

^

^

^ ^

^

^

Betsworth PS Corporate

Lower Moosa 
Canyon WRF Miller PS (B)

WOODS VALLEY RD

M
T

N
M

E
A

D
O

W
R

D

W LILAC RD

MIRAR DE VALLE RD

MESA VERDE DR

FRUITVALE RD

JE
S

M
O

N
D

D
E

N
E

R
D

COOL VALLEY RD

G
U

E
JIT

O
R

D

M
IL

L
E

R
R

D

BETSWORTH RD

CIR
CLE

R
DR

PA
RADISE MOUNTAIN RD

N
L
A

K
E

W
O

H
L
F

O
R

D
R

D

P
A

U
M

A
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
 R

D

LAKE WOHLFORD RD

C
O

U
S

E
R

C
A

N
Y

O
N

R
D

MC NALLY RD

N
 B

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

OLD CASTLE RD

W LILAC RD

C
O

L
E

 G
R

A
D

E
 R

D

L
I L

A
C

R
D

VALLEY CENTER RD

4

5
2

3

1

Portions of this DERIVED PRODUCT Contain geographic information Copyrighted by SanGIS. All Rights Reserved. 9/23/2022 - Y:\GISProjects\Field_Maintenance\RenewableEnergy.mxd

RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECTS
Operations and Facilities Department

Solar Sites Online
^ (7) Sites - Total: 1.43MW

Proposed Future Solar Sites
!P Betsworth Pump Station

!P Corporate Facility

!P Lower Moosa Canyon WRF

!P Miller Pump Station (B)

!
!

!
!

Terms:
kW - Kilowatt or 1,000 Watts
MW - Megawatt or 1,000 Kilowatts
1 MW will power 1,000 Homes

868kW

110kW

187kW

431kW

Total: 1.6MW

Cobb Res - 30kW

Cool Valley Res - 91kW

Tyler Pump Station - 52kW

Country Club Res - 58kW

MJM Pump Station - 30kW

Lake Turner - 1.1MW

Miller Pump Sta. (A) - 70kW

!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!! !!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!



                                                                     May 2023 
July 17, 2023                                                             2                                                Status Report                                                      

  MAY MAY MAY 
Wastewater   2023  2022  2021 

        Daily Flows (Average M.G.D.)    
    Moosa  .293 .284 .287 
Woods Valley  .117 .073 .057 
 

 
   F.Y. F.Y. 
 MAY MAY     2021-22 2020-21 

     2023  2022  to Date  to Date 
  Recycled Water 
   Woods Valley Ranch WWRF (A.F.)  10.85 7.00 108.43 64.17 

 
 B. CUSTOMER CONTACTS:   F.Y. F.Y. 

 MAY MAY 2022-23 2021-22 
  2023  2022   to Date  to Date 

Customer Service Requests 
 

Backflow Leaking 0 5 51 55 
Conservation 0 0 0 0 
Facilities Damaged by Others 2 0 4 8 
Leaks 23 13 248 235 
Miscellaneous 18 17 334 258 
No Water 3 7 40 50 
Pressure 3 9 105 114 
Sewer 0 0 2 0 
STEP System 2 0 8 20 
Water Quality 1 1 8 10 

 

After-Hour Call-Outs 
 

SCADA 3 6 43 42 
Customer 5 9 103 87 

 
  C. SAFETY/MEETINGS: 
 

Safety Meetings 
 

05/02/23 ─ AC Piper Refresher  (Bill Morris)   

05/16/23 ─ Heat Illness/Heat Stress  (Bill Morris) 

  
Seminars/Meetings 
 

05/03/23 ─ ACT Expo 2023 attended by Brian Lovelady and Roy Rutherford 
 
05/24/23 ─ WAEC Spring Meeting attended by Gaby Olson and Bill Morris 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                     May 2023 
July 17, 2023                                                             3                                                Status Report                                                      

 D. SECURITY:      F.Y.                 F.Y. 
      MAY MAY 2022-23 2021-22     

  2023  2022  to Date     to Date  
 
Trespassing/Break-ins 0 0 1 2 
Vandalism 0 0 1 0 
Threats/Suspicious Activity 0 0 1 0 
Theft  0 0 0 2 

 
 
 

E. METER SERVICES DIVISION:    F.Y. F.Y. 
  MAY 2022-23 2021-22 
   2023    to Date  to Date 

Installation/Maintenance/Repair 
 

Meters Installed  40 504 522 
Meter Service Repairs  9 91 39 
Total Meters Exchanged  17 192 231 

 
Meter Flow Test Bench 

 

Meters Tested  2 76 71 
 

Backflow Program 
RP & DC Devices    

 

Tested  529 5,793 5,227 
Repaired  17 220 272 
Installed  59 440 873 
Replaced Due to Theft/Damages  0 0 13 

              
                                  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
F. WATER FACILITIES DIVISION:      F.Y. F.Y.   

  MAY 2022-23 2021-22 
Pump Maintenance   2023    to Date  to Date 

 
Pumps Pulled  0 5 3 
Electric Motors Repaired  1 2 0 
Electric Motors Rewound  0 0 0 

 
 

G. CONSTRUCTION & MAINTENANCE DIVISION:   F.Y. F.Y.  
  MAY 2022-23 2021-22 
   2023  to Date  to Date 

Pipeline Maintenance/Repair 
    Mainline Repairs  0 18 12 

Shutdowns  0 7  15 
   Shutdowns Due to New Construction  2 13  8   
 



                                                                     May 2023 
July 17, 2023                                                             4                                                Status Report                                                      

  
  Valve Maintenance  

Quad completed: A – J   
19% through Quad K 

   

  Leak Detection Program Status 
   100% of facilities detected through Quads: A – J 

 19% of facilities detected through Quad K 
 
 
   F.Y. F.Y. 
  MAY 2022-23 2021-22 
   2023  to Date  to Date 

  Landscape (Reservoirs) Maintenance   
 
    Station Maintenance  19 181   234 
       
 
 
                                         

H. VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: 
   F.Y. F.Y. 
 MAY          2022-23 2021-22  

     2023   to Date  to Date 
 

Vehicles Serviced  4 56 58 

Miles Driven  30,279 304,980 277,733 

Gallons of Fuel Consumed - Vehicles  2,355 25,501 23,621 

Gallons of Fuel Consumed – Equipment  391 2,435 1,490 

MPG (average)  12.9 12.0 11.6 

 Pickup Trucks MPG  16.1 14.8 14.0 

 Service Trucks MPG  7.2 7.3 7.3 

Average Vehicle Miles  561 524 468 

Total Mileage on Vehicles   4,943,864 5,059,520   

   

  Total Number of Vehicles in Fleet  54 

   Vehicles in Service  47 

   Surplus Vehicles in Service  3 

 Surplus Vehicles Out of Service  3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FIELD DEPARTMENT
CAPITAL FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

Contractor / 
Consultant

01-06-78-51050 Natural Gas Engine 
Controls Upgrade and 
Automation

16-17 $190,000 33% 33% Construction in progress P&M

01-06-78-51650 Risk and Resilience 
Assessment and 
Emergecy Response 
Plan

20-21 $151,000 95% 95% Risk and Resiliency Assessment 100% complete.  ERP Plan is 
complete. Training will take place after COVID

SAFETY

01-06-78-51080 Pump Station Power 
Monitors

22-23 $56,220 $56,220 15% 15% Construction in progress P&M

01-06-78-51370 Vehicles - Pickup Truck 20-21 $54,500 $214,100 50% 50% 1 Complete, 1 On Order P&M

01-06-78-51371 Vehicles - Service Truck 21-22 $283,100 $430,525 37% 40% 1 Receveived, Out Fitting in Progress P&M

01-06-78-51372 Vehicles - Dump Truck 21-22 $189,100 $353,525 20% 20% On Order P&M
01-06-78-51373 Vehicles - Hooklift Truck 22-23 $238,800 $238,800 20% 20% On Order P&M

13-06-78-53140 Lower Moosa Collection 
System Vitrified Clay 
Pipe Lining

18-19 $119,000 90% 90% Contractor making repairs WW

13-06-78-53060 Lower Moosa Canyon 
Reclamation Facility 
Solar Evaluation

19-20 $15,000 0% 0% WW

13-06-78-53430 Lower Moosa Canyon 
WRF Islands Lift Station 
Generator

20-21 $55,000 20% 20% On Order P&M

13-06-78-53300 Sludge Transfer Pump 
Upgrade/Replacement

22-23 $33,000 $33,000 70% 70% Pump purchased, waiting install WW

13-06-78-53370 
17-06-78-57370

Vehicles - Pickup Truck 22-23 $58,000 20% 20% On Order P&M

13-06-78-53371 
17-06-78-57371

Vehicles - Utility Pumper 
Truck

21-22 $135,000 $135,000 100% 100% Completed P&M

13-06-78-53372 
17-06-78-57372

Vehicles - Service Truck 22-23 $119,590 15% 15% Out to Bid P&M

17-06-78-57040 Lift Pumps 21-22 $33,000 $33,000 100% 100% Completed WW

Contracts

Comments Dept.Project No. Name
F.Y. 

Auth- 
orized

           
Total 

Project 
Budget

% Complete   
APR   MAY

Budget 2022-
2023

Capital Funded Projects Summary
G:\BOARD Agendas, Minutes, etc\Monthly Status Reports\2023-05 May (07.17.23)\CI project summary - FIELD MAY 23.xlsx

Field Dept.
Page 1 of 1



                                                                     May 2023 
July 17, 2023                                                             5                                                Status Report                                                      

 
II. Residential Gallons Per Capita Daily (R-GPCD): 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                     May 2023 
July 17, 2023                                                             6                                                Status Report                                                      

III. ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT: 

 
A. ENGINEERING SERVICES:   

 
 

 

 

 

General Activity:   

In addition to the items listed in the above table, Engineering Services staff assists with 
encroachment permits and violations, provides information for mark outs and helps 
customers with water conservation questions, and available rebate programs. In the month 
of May, 14 sets of meters were installed in the Park Circle Community.    

 
B. GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS): 

 

GIS staff gathers and updates the facility data in the GIS as it is modified and assists project 
managers with various project maps/exhibits and data analysis. 
 
The following took place in May:   

1. The Engineering technician is continually adding water and wastewater infrastructure to 
the GIS system. This month she added/updated several water meters and backflows. 
Additionally, she has taken on the task of analyzing, adding, and updating all our facilities. 
Drawing out any improvements and bringing the as-builts together to hyperlink for staff to 
use in the Cityworks application or GIS web maps. This month the Tyler Reservoir was 
reviewed and updated; 



                                                                     May 2023 
July 17, 2023                                                             7                                                Status Report                                                      

2. Updated the Esri GIS software to the latest release 11.1; 

3. Re-worked the field mobile application for the Lead Service Line Inventory solution. 
Added in some instructions and streamlined the questionnaire; 

4. Staff employed a consultant to digitize district easements to display in GIS. We have 
received multiple files consisting of over 900 Easements. We are currently reviewing this 
data and have added it to our Geodatabase so we can view it in our Web applications. 

 
C. EASEMENT ENCROACHMENTS: 

Summary of Activities: 
 

In the month of May, no Violations were discovered and no Permits were requested. All other 
existing files are still pending. 

 

Encroachment Table Footnotes: 

1) Pending Evaluation – This column represents the status of reported encroachment 
violations.  The number of new violations reported during the month is indicated along 
with the number of violations that were resolved during the month.  Resolution may result 
in either a) the property owner agreeing to remove the encroachment violation, b) in some 
cases, the District allowing the encroachment violation to remain pending resolution by 
the District, c) issuance of an encroachment permit that allows the encroachment to 
remain as is, or d) issuance of an encroachment permit that requires modification of the 
encroachment by the owner.  Once the course of action for resolution of the encroachment 
violation has been determined, it is shown completed in the Pending Evaluation column 
and becomes a new item in either the Owner Resolution Column, the District Resolution 
Column or the Active Permit Column.    

2) Owner Resolution – Removal of the encroachment violation is a property owner action 
requirement and will be inspected by District staff.  The number of encroachment 
violations that were removed during the month is indicated as completed in this column. 

3) District Resolution – Staff has determined that the encroachment violation is not a result 
of current owner’s action and has agreed allow the encroachment to remain pending 
resolution by the District. The encroachment violation is properly documented and made 
clear to the owner that the District is not responsible for damage to the encroachment as 
a result of the operation, maintenance or failure of the District’s facility in the easement.   



                                                                     May 2023 
July 17, 2023                                                             8                                                Status Report                                                      

4) Pending Evaluation – This column represents the status of requests to construct facilities 
or other improvements within a District easement under review and consideration.  The 
number of requests received during the month is indicated as new and the number of 
requests resolved is indicated as completed.  Resolution of the request included either a) 
denial of the encroachment request, or b) issuance of an encroachment permit. Many 
times the encroachment permits is issued concurrently with the completion of the work.  
Encroachment permits that will require further follow up inspection are shown in the Active 
Permits column.  

5) Active Permits – This column shows the status of encroachment permits approved by 
District with work in progress and being inspected by District staff.  Although the work is 
authorized, work may not commence immediately. 

 

D. DEVELOPER FUNDED PROJECTS: 

See Table I and Location Map for project details and general status of the Special Projects, 
Private Low-Pressure Wastewater Collection System Installations and Cell Site Projects that 
are in process. 

   
See Table II and Location Map for general status of all developer funded projects. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE I - ENGINEERING SERVICES PROJECTS SUMMARY

Job # 
182xx

PROJECT NAME
Owner

Engineer
Plan

Approval

Estimated
Construction

Cost
Contractor

% Complete
Construction

May 2023
Comments

15

North Avenue Estates - RDDMWD 
& COE Project, Incl. VCMWD 
Waterline Relocation and Access 
Easement

Jared Aronowitz
(Beazer)

Masson & Associates
11/2/2022 N/A TNT Blanchard 10%

No Owner or VCMWD activity since the preliminary pre-
construction meeting held in February '23.

28
Miller Road Plaza - Shopping 
Center: Water/Irrig. & Fire Service, 
w/Grinder Pump

Valley Center View Properties
Wynn Engineering

10/12/22 $400,000
Gratzl Heavy Equipment 

Rental (Grading)
20%

Contractor began pipe installation. They have started on Valley 
Center Road and are working North on Miller.

39
KA Enterprises - Fire 
Service/FH/Meter Relocate for new 
Circle R at Mountain Meadow Rd.

KA Enterprises
Omega Engineering 

Consultants
6/3/2021 $21,200 BC3 Equipment 95%

VCMWD is waiting on contractor to complete outstanding 
punchlist items. County punchlist requirements are holding up 
completion of District requirements. 

44

San Pasqual Retail Center adjacent 
to Horizon
Ph 1 - Water Service Installation
Ph 2 - Road Widening and 
Appurtenance Relocation

San Pasqual Economic 
Development Corporation 

Masson and Associates Inc
3/18/2021 $92,758 TLM Petro Labor force, Inc. 70%

Onsite fire protection discussions continued from March '23 with 
VCFPD.  No further VCMWD activity in May.

Special Projects (01-00-00-182xx)

Engineering Services Projects Summary Page 1 of 3 May 2023



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE I - ENGINEERING SERVICES PROJECTS SUMMARY

Job # 
182xx

PROJECT NAME
Owner

Contactor
Plan

Approval

Estimated
Construction

Cost
Contractor

% Complete
Construction

May 2023
Comments

64
Anthony Rd. Fire Hydrant - 
Blackrock

David Klose N/A Pending Pending 0%
Project was established and performance bond received in October 
2021. No VCMWD Activity in May.

65

ARCO Gas Station and Store at VC 
Rd & Cole Grade Rd
Domestic/Irrig/Fire Service and 
Sewer with Grinder pump

Rafat Mikhail
Civil Landworks

5/2/2023 Pending
Gratzl Heavy Equipment 

Rental
5% Utility plans were signed by VCMWD on May 2nd.

66 Darling Sewer Lateral Terri Darling 4/29/2021 $15,300 Drave's Pipeline Inc. 100% In 1-year Warranty Period through August 2023.

67 Hamid Quitclaim Hamid Liaghat $2,000 Szytel Engineering 80%
Staff transmitted comments to the property owners surveyor to 
address. Staff is awaiting revised documents to proceed. 
Property owner put quitclaim on hold for now. 

69 Goldman FH Melanie Goldman $17,365 Draves Pipeline Inc. 0%

Wynn Engineering placed survey stakes to mark the edge of 
Right of Way. Fire Hydrant submittals were approved back in 
September. VCMWD currently awaiting installation date from 
contractor. 

81 Erler/Carney Rd FH Hank Erler N/A $37,090 Draves Pipeline Inc. 100% In 1-year Warranty Period through January 2024.

82
V.C. Fire Station No. 3
Domestic Service and Fire Detector 
Assembly

Erickson-Hall 
Construction Co.
Brandon Hamlett

N/A Pending 0%
Previously staff communicated conditions for service as part of 
Agency Clearance approval.  No further activity with VCFPD in 
May.

83
McNally - JHR Partners 
Fire Hydrant

JHR Partners
Wade Rupe

N/A Pending 0%

Project account was established and initial $5,000 deposit was 
received in February '23. VCMWD waiting for developer to 
procure contractor and start submittal process. No further 
VCMWD activity in May.

Special Projects (01-00-00-182xx), Continued.

Engineering Services Projects Summary Page 2 of 3 May 2023



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE I - ENGINEERING SERVICES PROJECTS SUMMARY

 Equipment 

App# APPLICANT Plan Submittal
Plan

Approval

Estimated 
Construction 

Cost
Contractor

% Complete
Construction

May 2023
Comments

417
Papa Bears
(Armando & Maria Sanchez)

11/26/18 11/26/18 N/A Pending 95%
Installation of the grinder pump has been completed since 
January '22.  Start-up inspection pending completion of 
restaurant remodel by owner.  No VCMWD Activity in May.

11166
Antonio Vera
(Woods Valley Ct)

11/09/22 11/09/22 N/A Property Owner 90%
Customer completed grinder pump panel and electrical 
installation. Start up was scheduled for June 1st.

11698
Good Standing - Hakeem Milbes
(Tall Oak Lot 27)

01/23/23 01/25/23 N/A Pending 0%
Approved Planning Submittal in January '23. Waiting on 
customer to start installation. 

11699
Good Standing - Hakeem Milbes
(Tall Oak Lot 24)

09/20/22 09/26/22 N/A Pending 0%
Received and approved Plan Submittal in September '22.   No 
Owner Activity since that time.

11727
Ryan Scharbarth
(27674 High Vista Dr)

Pending N/A Pending 0%
Waiting on customer to procure contractor and start the planning 
and installation approval process.

10564
Joi Blake
(Tall Oak Lot 17)

Pending N/A Pending 0%
Sent customer grinder pump information in Feb '23 but have not 
had any follow up contact from customer.

Site # SITE Plan Submittal
Plan

Approval

Estimated 
Construction 

Cost
Cell Company

% Complete
Construction

May 2023
Comments

NO CELL SITE INSTALLATIONS ARE IN PROCESS AT THIS TIME

Private Grinder Pump - LPS Installations (13-06-78-53250 or 17-06-78-57250 - Function 64)

Cell Site Installations (01-03-23-50001 Function 122)

Engineering Services Projects Summary Page 3 of 3 May 2023



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE II - DEVELOPER FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

PLANNING

02 Butterfield Trails NL TM 5551 71 G
Alidade Engineering - 
Larry Dutton

09/02/14 $2,457,000 No VCMWD Activity in May.

05 Belmont Estates NL TM5110-1 4 G ACAL Engineering 08/04/14 02/04/16 $166,655
No response to letter requesting status update sent February 
2018. No VCMWD Activity in May.

06

Lake Wohlford Resort 
Annexation

Office of Water 
Programs - 
Sacramento State 
(OWP) is providing 
management services 
for the Facility Grant 
with the SWRCB

WG F
Dexter Wilson 
Engineering

OWP obtained approval in February of an amendment to the 
SWRCB Grant to fund additional Annexation and Planning costs 
of the private water facilities needed to serve the resort and 
adding participating of the San Pasqual Band of Mission Indians 
for water service at Duro Road.
 
Updated contracts with the consultants were completed 
reflecting the approved workplan amendment.  District 
activities are still on hold pending  funding of VCMWD 
project expenses and the SDCWA and MWD annexation 
processing fees.

07
Viking Grove 
Development

NL
20689 &
20690

9 B ACAL Engineering 05/16/16 11/09/22 $318,507
TAD 

Construction 
5% 5%

Tie in for temporary high line was completed March 2nd. 
Developer was weather delayed on finishing their storm 
water improvements. Storm water improvements have to be 
completed before construction of public waterline can 
continue. 

09
Duffywood LLC 
Waterline Extension

P NL TM 5478 7 B
Florentina/
Civil Land Works

01/03/22 11/24/20 $360,000
TAD 

Construction 
100% 4/14/2023 Project in 1 year warranty period through April 2024.

17
Bear Peak
(Shady Oak)

NL 47 B
Rick Engineering 
Company

03/18/19 07/08/19 $600,000

GPS Plumbing
and

H7 Contrating 
& Engineering

100% 04/26/23
Final punchlist items were completed in May. Final 
acceptance was issued by the District May 26th 2023.

19
The Oaks
(Washington Meadows 
Dev., Inc.)

NL TM 5174.1 11 D Spears and Assoc. 10/19/15 09/08/22 $186,710 0%
The final map and plans were signed by the District and 
transmitted to the developer in September 2022. No 
VCMWD activity in May.

22 El Cidro NL 10 G
BWE, Inc. 
(formerly Burkett & 
Wong Engineering)

04/15/13 11/30/15 $410,250

Joint Agreement to Improve Subdivision, Joint Lien Agreement & 
Lien Hold Agreement approved by the County and the Final Map 
was recorded in July 2016.  With project under a Lien Hold 
Agreement, construction will be delayed indefinitely.  No 
VCMWD Activity.

Park Circle
Touchstone 
Communities
(Backbone Facilities)
(neighborhoods A & C)

NL
TM 5603

Units 2 & 3
B 04/15/19 07/23/19 $3,100,000 Basile 98%

In March, an updated punch list was issued to developer.  
Staff is continuing to work with developer and their 
contractors on completing the remaining items. 

CONSTRUCTION

% 
Complete

Final 
Acceptance

 Estimated 
Cost

Proj. Mgr.

Planning

Plan
Approval

(1)

P
h
a
s
e

Contractor
Concept
Approval

PROJECT NAME   
Job #

01-00-00-
180xx

Map No.
Lots/
Units Engineer

May 2023
Comments

Developer Funded Projects Summary Page 1 of 5 May 2023



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE II - DEVELOPER FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

PLANNING CONSTRUCTION

% 
Complete

Final 
Acceptance

 Estimated 
Cost

Proj. Mgr.

Planning

Plan
Approval

(1)

P
h
a
s
e

Contractor
Concept
Approval

PROJECT NAME   
Job #

01-00-00-
180xx

Map No.
Lots/
Units Engineer

May 2023
Comments

Park Circle
Touchstone 
Communities
(Neighborhood E)

NL
TM 5603

Unit 1
101 B 04/15/19 10/19/20 Cass/Arrieta 95%

Developer continues to construct homes.  VCMWD staff 
working with developer to complete punch list items.

Park Circle
Touchstone 
Communities
(Neighborhood B)

NL

TM 5603
Unit 4 & 
Portion 
Unit 5

143 B 04/15/19 11/18/19 Cass/Arrieta 95%
Remaining punch list items for Unit 4 have still not been 
addressed.  VCMWD staff is working with the developer and 
their contractor towards completion. 

Orchard Run
 Subdivision - Unit 1
(Backbone Facilities 
funded by 
Touchstone)

20 B 04/15/19 07/23/19 $1,855,600 Cass/Arrieta 95%
Developer continues to work through punchlist items. 
VCMWD inspected six sewer connections in May. 

Orchard Run 
Subdivision - Unit 2
(Backbone Facilities 
funded by 
Touchstone)

3 B 04/15/19 07/23/19 $1,877,000
Cass/Arrieta 

H7
95% Remaining Unit 2 work is under KB Homes Job No. Item 56.

Orchard Run 
Subdivision - Unit 3
(Backbone Facilities 
funded by 
Touchstone)

120 B 04/15/19 07/23/19 $1,717,785 Cass/Arrieta 95%
VCMWD staff continued to work with developer and their 
contractor to review outstanding punch list items. 

27
Free-Thomas  Line 
Extension

NL 20450 4 G Penny Engineering 12/24/14 12/24/14 $69,837

No activity since letter informing Owner that plan approval 
expired; requested project update.  Owner continuing to process 
plans through County which is delaying water design.  No 
VCMWD Activity in May.

30
Deer Springs Towne 
Center

NL 2 F
BWE, Inc. 
(formerly Burkett & 
Wong Engineering)

Staff previously met with County planner in charge of other 
adjacent development to explore options for wastewater service 
that can be applicable here as well. There may be opportunity for 
joint effort with other developers for a communal system, to be 
further explored with individual developers. No VCMWD Activity 
in May.

32
Keys Creek Water Line 
Replacement (Keys 
Creek Investments, Inc.)

NL PM 1698 3 D
Engineering Design 
Group - Ranka 
Vukmanic

08/03/15 N/A $7,492
Draves 
Pipeline

100% 02/02/23 Project in 1 year warranty period through February 2024.

35 Welk Garden Villas NL 148 B Hale 06/19/06 07/26/10 $458,800 Ratzlaff 90%

In October 2022, Staff met with representative from Marriot, the 
new Owner of Welk Resort.  They indicated a contractor is in 
process of being selected to perform the remaining punch list 
items.  No VCMWD Activity in May.

Rimrock Phase III - 
Unit 1

9 D Piro Engineering 06/07/93

Rimrock Phase III - 
Unit 2

32 D Piro Engineering 06/07/93

Rimrock Phase III - 
Unit 3

29 D CTE, Inc. 06/07/93

39 NL TM 4744

25 NL

TM 5087
Unit 1 - 58 

Lots
Unit 2 - 70 

Lots
Unit 3 - 120 

Lots
Affordable 

Homes - 52 
lots 

23

Dexter Wilson 
Engineering & 
Touchstone 
Engineering Staff

Dexter Wilson 
Engineering & 
Touchstone 
Engineering Staff

District was previously requested to re-sign the joint County 
bonds as part of the ownership transfer process.  District met 
with the new owner in October of 2022 representatives shortly 
after to review the project. The new owner is planning to resume 
development of the remaining lots in the near future. No 
VCMWD Activity in May.

Developer Funded Projects Summary Page 2 of 5 May 2023



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE II - DEVELOPER FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

PLANNING CONSTRUCTION

% 
Complete

Final 
Acceptance

 Estimated 
Cost

Proj. Mgr.

Planning

Plan
Approval

(1)

P
h
a
s
e

Contractor
Concept
Approval

PROJECT NAME   
Job #

01-00-00-
180xx

Map No.
Lots/
Units Engineer

May 2023
Comments

40 Circle P NL TM 5468 11 G CTE, Inc. 08/07/17

No activity since Board issued Concept Approval for the project 
in August  2017. Staff prepared and submitted  District Facility 
Agreement (DFA) to Developer for signature. Plan review 
pending receipt of plans and signed DFA. No VCMWD Activity 
in May.

44 Sea Bright Line Ext. NL TM 5814 9 G Sea Bright 01/22/13 06/02/17 $639,000

No activity since Board issued Concept Approval for the project 
in August 2017. Staff prepared and submitted  District Facility 
Agreement (DFA) to Developer for signature. Plan review 
pending receipt of plans and signed DFA. No VCMWD Activity 
in May.

46 Beck Subdivision NL TM 5060 16 G Sea Bright 06/01/09 10/10/18 $237,215

In March, developer reached out to VCMWD to discuss the 
possibility of quitclaiming VCMWD easements and reverting 
the subdivision back to acreage. No VCMWD Activity in 
May.

51
Eagles Noel (Baldwin) 
Water Line Extension

NL PM 17548 3 B Wynn Engineering 04/05/21 06/02/21 $185,000
JPI 

Development
95%

New waterline tie in was completed in May. VCMWD issued 
punchlist to developer. 

52
Weston Towne Center 
(previously called Village 
Square)

WG 85 F
TSAC Engineering
Steve McPartland

The project was acquired by Indian Creek Associates, LLC.  The 
new owner has established a new project account, see Job  No. 
Item 73.

Owner of the commercial property (Bob's LLC) has not yet made 
contact with the District.  This account will remain open to report 
on the status of the commercial property.

54 Mathew Rd. Line Ext. NL 3 A
Wunderlin 
Engineering Inc.

12/21/20 09/28/21 $58,100
Westcoast 

Underground
100% 06/02/22 Project in 1 year warranty period through July 2023.

55
Park Circle
Shea Homes
(Neighborhood A)

NL
Portion

TM 5603
Unit 5

88 B

Dexter Wilson 
Engineering & 
Touchstone 
Engineering Staff

04/15/19 11/18/19 Cass/Arrieta 95%
No punchlist items were worked on by the developer in 
May. No VCMWD Activity.

56
Orchard Run 
KB Home Coastal
(Units 1 & 2)

NL 105 B

Dexter Wilson 
Engineering & 
Touchstone 
Engineering Staff

04/17/19 07/23/19 $1,717,785

 H7 
Contracting 

and 
Engineering

95%
Developer's contractor is working to complete punch list 
items. No VCMWD Activity in May.

57
Orchard Run Unit 3
Affordable Home Unit

NL TM 5087-3 52 B Touchstone 04/17/19 07/23/19
Incl in OR Unit 

3
Cass/Arieta 50%

In March, conditional Acceptance was issued. No further 
VCMWD activity occurred in May.

58
Mountain Meadow 
Village Center

NL 1 F PLSA
In October 2022, Developer requested additional Project Facility 
Availability forms to be signed as part of their ongoing permitting 
process with the County. No VCMWD Activity in May.

Developer Funded Projects Summary Page 3 of 5 May 2023



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE II - DEVELOPER FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

PLANNING CONSTRUCTION

% 
Complete

Final 
Acceptance

 Estimated 
Cost

Proj. Mgr.

Planning

Plan
Approval

(1)

P
h
a
s
e

Contractor
Concept
Approval

PROJECT NAME   
Job #

01-00-00-
180xx

Map No.
Lots/
Units Engineer

May 2023
Comments

59
Pauma Vista Winery 
Water Line Extension

NL 1 C
Rancho Coastal 
Surveying 
Engineering Inc.

01/07/22 11/16/22 $255,000 Pending
Project plans were signed on November 16, 2022. Developer is 
currently obtaining quotes from contractors to perform the 
proposed improvements. No VCMWD Activity in May.

60 Liberty Bell Plaza NL 5 F
Alidade Engineering - 
Larry Dutton

VCMWD staff worked on creating terms and conditions 
letter for service as part of Agency Clearance approval.

64
Park Circle Beazer 
Homes (Unit 4)

NL TM 5603-2 79 B

Dexter Wilson 
Engineering & 
Touchstone 
Engineering Staff

04/15/19 09/27/21

H7 
Engineering 

and 
Contracting

80%
VCMWD conditionally accepted Alley G-2 on May 26th. 10 
sets of 3/4" Domestic Meters and 1" Fire Meters were 
installed on Alley G-3. 

65
Rincon Tribe 
Emergency Water 
Service

WG G JR Filanc

Staff is providing assistance and coordination to Rincon Band of 
Luiseno Indians regarding their evaluation of obtaining a 
connection location for an emergency source of water supply. 
Study is being conducted by JR Filanc utilizing San Diego State 
Engineering Department.  No Activity since initial discussion 
with SDSU Students in October 2021.

66 Village Station NL 200 F Wynn Engineering Pending

Previously requested updated preliminary design report (PDR) 
for all of VCVP North Village property.  Owner contracted with 
Dexter Wilson Engineering to prepare the report.  Staff had 
previously provided DWE with additional information. No further 
activity anticipated until receipt of the PDR.

67
Ivy Dell RV Park Water 
Line Extension

NL 1 D
Excell Engineering
Robert Dentino

Pending Pending Pending

Final mylars are still awaiting County approval to be 
returned to VCMWD for final approval and signature. Once 
mylars are signed, developer can move forward with 
scheduling a pre-construction meeting.

69
Manzanita Crest 
Waterline Extension

NL PM 19064 F SMS Consulting Pending
Developer's engineer submitted plans for review. Staff 
processed and returned first plan check comments in June. No 
VCMWD Activity in May.

72
SDG&E Strategic 
Undergrounding Project 
(SUP)

NL B NV5
Staff is supporting the project as necessary in response to 
SDG&E activity surrounding District facilities. SDG&E is working 
with VCMWD to obtain easement.

73
North Ranch Estates
(Weston Residential 
Property)

NL 515 F
Dexter Wilson 
Engineering.

Developer is working closely with the other major developers in 
the North Village Area to prepare a phased expansion plan for 
additional wastewater capacity.  Dexter Wilson Engineering will 
be updating their prior reports and requesting an update to the 
prior concept approval.

No submittals received from the Developer in May. 

Developer Funded Projects Summary Page 4 of 5 May 2023



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE II - DEVELOPER FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

PLANNING CONSTRUCTION

% 
Complete

Final 
Acceptance

 Estimated 
Cost

Proj. Mgr.

Planning

Plan
Approval

(1)

P
h
a
s
e

Contractor
Concept
Approval

PROJECT NAME   
Job #

01-00-00-
180xx

Map No.
Lots/
Units Engineer

May 2023
Comments

74
City of Escondido Flume 
Underground Project

NL B
Michael Baker 
International

Sukut
Project is to account for spent inspecting construction of the City 
of Escondido's Flume underground project occurring in the 
vicinity of District Facilities.  No VCMWD Activity in May.

75
Hideaway Lake Road 
Waterline Extension

NL 1 E ARC Engineering Pending
Staff requested additional information in January to process 
Concept Approval.  Waiting on response from developer to move 
forward with concept approval.  No activity in May.

84
Anderson Line 
Extension
(Munster Platz)

NL TPM 20460 5 G Wynn Engineering 05/16/16

Developer's Engineer contacted District late May 2021 indicating 
that the Developer was wanting to move forward with the water 
line improvements in 2021.  Staff responded with need to renew 
the Concept Approval and review the plans for compliance with 
latest standards.  No VCMWD Activity in May.

88
Marquart Ranch Line 
Ext.

NL TM 5410 9 G
MLB Engineering
(Michael Benesh)

05/04/09 09/19/17 $293,751 No activity since plans approved September 7, 2017.

PROJECT SUMMARY
Lots
or

Units
Total Cost

A Warranty Period 3 $58,100 (DFA) = District Facilities Agreement

B Under Construction 925 $12,190,477

C Pending Construction 1 $255,000 (P)  =  District Participation in Project

D Design Phase 85 $194,202

E
Concept Approval 
(Pending Design)

1 $0 (R)  =  Reimbursement Agreement

Total in Process 1,015 $12,697,779

F In Planning - Active 808 $0 (1) Red Text indicates that Concept or Plan Approval has expired.

G In Planning - Inactive 139 $4,273,708

Total Planning 947 $4,273,708

Total Projects 1,962 $16,971,487

1

1

44

26

10

18

# of
Projects

6

1

17

8

Developer Funded Projects Summary Page 5 of 5 May 2023





                                                                     May 2023 
July 17, 2023                                                             9                                                Status Report                                                      

E. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS: 

See Table III and Location Map for general status of all capital improvement projects. 

 
 

 
 

F. MAPPING: 

General Activity: In the month of May staff received 32 mapping update requests for a total 
of 133, 20 were completed. In addition, staff assisted with the Lilac Road Pipeline Upsize 
and Meadows Lift Station Capital Improvement Project drawings. 

 
 

Maps and Records Updates:  Maps and records consist of preparing record drawings (as-
builts) and valve detail drawings and updating the District base map, GIS facility map, and 
database.  Maps and records are continually being updated to accurately reflect completed 
projects, non-District improvements (encroachments), and current field conditions.  The 
following table summarizes the status of the record map updates.  

Maps and Records Update Status Table Footnotes: 

1) Capital Improvement Projects – This column represents AutoCAD record drawing status of 
recently constructed Capital Improvement Projects. Each project may generate or affect one 
or more record drawings.  Each project is counted as one regardless of the number of 
improvement sheets. 

2) Developer Projects – This column represents AutoCAD record drawing status of recently 
constructed Developer Improvement Projects.  Each project may generate or affect one or 
more record drawings. Each project is counted as one regardless of the number of 
improvement sheets. 

3) Encroachment Permits – This column represents changes made to our existing AutoCAD 
record drawings to reflect an encroachment that has been generated through the permit 
process. 

4) Special Projects – This column represents AutoCAD record drawing status of recently 
constructed Special Projects such as the installation of new fire hydrants or service laterals.  

5) Facility Mapping – This column represents individual minor mapping update requests 
from field or office staff.  

 



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE III - CAPITAL FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

Apr May

Upsizing / Unspecified Pipeline Replacement 22-23 $151,500 N/A 0% 0%
Wally 

Grabbe

Authorization with FY 2022-23 Annual Budget - $200,000 - 
Previously transferred $48,500  for the acquisition of property 
adjacent to Circle R Reservoir - $151,500 remains available for 
future projects.

51500 Pipeline Condition Assessment 22-23 $150,000 Pending 2% 2%
Michael
Powers

Staff continued to develop the scope and continued work on a 
draft request for proposals including desktop condition 
assessment as well as physical conditions assessment for select 
pipelines.

51150
North Broadway Pipeline Relocation
(Design/Bid Phase)

21-22 $100,000
In-House (Design)
TSAC - Surveying

75% 75%
Michael
Powers

Staff continued communications and coordination with EUSD 
and other property owners regarding acquisition of necessary 
easements as well as internal reviews of the easement 
documents and proposed quitclaims.

18080
NC ESP Alternative Delivery Project
Planning, Design and Funding Agreement 
(Construction Phase)

17-18 $11,325,000 Orion Construction 100% 3%
Nick

Lyuber

The tri agency agreement was executed by all parties, 
disbursement check is being prepared by SDCWA for 
distribution to VCMWD. Meanwhile, contracts are being 
processed and reviewed. The team is also getting ahead start on 
receiving and reviewing critical submittals. 

51200
NC ESP 14-inch Pipeline Relocation (Construction 
Phase)

21-22 $725,000 Orion Construction 100% 3%
Nick

Lyuber
Included with the NCESP project activities.

51513
Water System Upgrade Projects - 
Keys Creek Crossing Replacement (planning and 
design)

14-15 $170,000 In-House 20%
Fernando

Carrillo

Staff is preparing a  recommendation for replacement and confirming 
the size requirement, a pipe bridge replacement above the 100-year 
floodplain elevation appears the least expensive option.  No Activity 
in May.

51690
Cole Grade Road Pipeline Replacement
Design Phase

16-17 $610,000 In-House 95%
Nick

Lyuber

District received additional comments from the County and are in 
process of preparing a response. A meeting is schedule in June 
to review County comments and District responses.

Pipelines & PRV Projects

May 2023
Comments

51020

Contractor / 
Consultant

Acct.
No.

Project Name   
F.Y.

Author-
ized

Total
Budget

Project 
Manager

Capital Funded  Projects Summary Page 1 of 6 May 2023



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE III - CAPITAL FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

Apr May

May 2023
Comments

Contractor / 
Consultant

Acct.
No.

Project Name   
F.Y.

Author-
ized

Total
Budget

Project 
Manager

51412
Gordon Hill Pipeline Replacement
(Design/Bid/Award Phase - 100% Complete)
(Construction Ongoing)

18-19 $3,380,000 CCL Contracting 100% 100%
Nick

Lyuber
Notice of Completion was recorded May 4th. Retention will be 
released to the contractor following a 30 day period. 

51415

Oat Hill Discharge & Alps Way Pipeline 
Replacement 
(Design/Bid/Award Phase - 100% Complete)
(Construction Ongoing)

18-19 $1,225,000 M-Rae 100% 100%
Nick

Lyuber

District has decided to eliminate the 16 inch replacement scope of 
work from the M-Rae Engineering contract. Staff is in process of 
closing out project and negotiating the reduction in scope with the 
contractor. 

51417
Lilac Road Pipeline Upsizing 
(Construction Phase)

18-19 $3,700,000 Cass Arrieta 40% 45%
Fernando

Carrillo
Contractor laid pipe up to 30-inch tie-in point and started to 
install service line and appurtenances. 

51420
Old Castle Road Pipeline Replacement - Phase 2
Design Only

21-22 $100,000 In-House 80% 80%
Michael
Powers

This project is planned to be included in the "2021 Facility 
Replacement Project" SRF application. Staff is working on 
design plans to be included with the application including the 
verification of existing utilities and meters.

51460 Duffwood Project 21-22 $190,000 TAD Construction 100% 100%
Nick

Lyuber
Project is complete and in the 1- year warranty period, ending 
4/14/24.

51120
2020 DWSRF Loan Application
(Reimbursement Phase)

18-19 $150,000
Birdseye Planning 

Group
15%

Nick
Lyuber

Staff submitted request for reimbursement #2 and are awaiting 
for further instruction from the state if any. 

51121 2021 DWSRF Loan Application 20-21 $75,000
Birdseye Planning 

Group
30%

Nick
Lyuber

Application preparation is in process. District has been recently 
notified of successful allocation of grant funds through an EPA 
program. Given this news, District's strategy for this application 
must be modified. 

51910
Gordon Hill Upper Pipeline Relocation Project 
(Design, Bid Phase)

21-22 $30,000 In-House 90% 90%
Michael
Powers

Staff has submitted encroachment permit applications with 
SDG&E and is awaiting further direction. Staff continued 
verification of existing utilities within the project boundary.

Capital Funded  Projects Summary Page 2 of 6 May 2023



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE III - CAPITAL FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

Apr May

May 2023
Comments

Contractor / 
Consultant

Acct.
No.

Project Name   
F.Y.

Author-
ized

Total
Budget

Project 
Manager

51230
Kornblum Reservoir Mixing System (Construction 
Phase)

22-23 $300,000 D&H/UGSI/In House 10%
Nick

Lyuber
District crews are preparing to begin construction of the building that 
will house the equipment in June. 

51303
Ridge Ranch Interim Reservoir
(Design Phase)

19-20 $90,000
In-House 
Design

15% 20%
Michael
Powers

Staff began writing pre-design report to be included with request 
for proposals to solicit aid in preparing bid documents. Staff 
continued investigations to develop site plans and materials 
specifications for the 30% design.

51307 Weaver Reservoir - Paint & Recoat 21-22 $1,800,000 AMP United 100% 100%
Nick

Lyuber
Project complete and in the 1-year Warranty Period, ending 
10/6/2023.

51401
Burnt Mountain & Reidy Canyon No. 2 Reservoir  - 
Paint & Recoat

21-22 $1,150,000 
Advanced Industrial 

Services
100% 100%

Nick
Lyuber

Project is complete and in the 1- year warranty period, ending 
12/19/23.

51403
San Gabriel No. 1 Reservoir - 
Paint & Recoat

22-23 $2,040,000 AMP United 77% 90%
Michael
Powers

Contractor completed interior preparation and coating, 
continued with surface preparation and coating of the exterior 
and began process of demobilization of certain equipment from 
the site.

51404
Mountain Meadow No. 1 & Reid Hill Reservoirs - 
Paint & Recoat

22-23 $2,315,000 
Capital Industrial 

Coatings
83% 95%

Michael
Powers

Staff approved Change Order 6 which included repairs to the 
exterior coating and began closeout of the Project. Contractor 
completed construction of the project by the contract end date. 

Reservoir Projects

Capital Funded  Projects Summary Page 3 of 6 May 2023



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE III - CAPITAL FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

Apr May

May 2023
Comments

Contractor / 
Consultant

Acct.
No.

Project Name   
F.Y.

Author-
ized

Total
Budget

Project 
Manager

51730
SCADA/HMI Migration - Water system - 
Initial Equipment Purchase FY 17/18
Migration FY 21/22

21-22 $310,000 In-House 15% 15%
Nick 

Lyuber

Staff is working on Request for Qualification to facilitate 
selection of the consultant integrator. It is anticipated to have the 
RFQ advertised in June and selection made in August.

51770 Document Management System 22-23 $65,000 Pending 0% 0%
Wally 

Grabbe

Recommendation for software vender delayed pending further 
evaluation of construction management software and other 
department document requirements.  Recommendation scheduled for 
July timeframe.

51780 GIS Easement Integration 22-23 $75,000
In-House & 

Miller Spatial 
Services

60% 60%
Nick 

Lyuber

The process is being refined and recalibrated to meet current needs, 
incorporating lessons learned from experience thus far. District is 
looking into Artificial intelligence capabilities that can streamline the 
process and reduce staffing efforts.  

Facilities Projects

51670 Turner Dam EAP 18-19 $9,500
Chang Consultants
Prestige Analytics, 

Inc.
95% 98%

Wally 
Grabbe

Gaby
Olson

DSOD (Division of Safety of Dams) approved the new inundation map 
on January 16, 2020.    Staff had previously contracted with a 
consultant, Prestige Analytics, Inc.,  to address the State's comments 
and complete the EAP.

Staff reviewed a final draft prepared by the consultant and it was 
resubmitted to CalOES (California Office of Emergency Services) 
with new comments to address in June. 

51590 Water Age Analysis 22-23 $100,000
Mission Consulting 

Services
(Jen Mael)

5% 5%
Wally 

Grabbe
Collecting and organizing water meter usage data for use in the 
evaluation.

Data Management Systems

Capital Funded  Projects Summary Page 4 of 6 May 2023



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE III - CAPITAL FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

Apr May

May 2023
Comments

Contractor / 
Consultant

Acct.
No.

Project Name   
F.Y.

Author-
ized

Total
Budget

Project 
Manager

53030 Moosa Wastewater O&M Manual Development 17-18 $60,000 In-House 60% 60%
Fernando

Carrillo
Rockwell is under contract and is assisting in the development 
of an RFP for system integrators.

53130 Moosa Aeration Air Piping Upgrade 22-23 $150,000 In-House 30% 30%
Fernando

Carrillo

District Construction Maintenance crews continued the installation of 
the 8-inch steel Aeration Air pipe and tied it into the existing 8-inch  
Aeration Air pipe near the Basins.  An isolation butterfly valve was 
installed to separate air supply to Basin 1 and  2.

53290 Meadows Lift Station Motor Control Upgrade 21-22 $455,000 In-House Design 5% 5%
Fernando

Carrillo
Staff is in the design phase for the MCC replacement.

53320 Moosa Clarifier Upgrades - Design 21-22 $250,000 In-House 75% 75%
Fernando

Carrillo
Bids were received in May and project will be award in June

53450 Moosa Headworks Improvements 21-22 $140,000 In-House 5% 5%
Fernando

Carrillo

Staff has put the design on hold pending completion of the Moosa 
Master Plan, which may effect the Headworks improvements 
proposed with this project.

56120

Woods Valley Ranch Wastewater Expansion 
Project

Property Acquisitions

98-99 $250,000 In-House 80% 80%
Wally 

Grabbe

North Village Lift Station site acquisition pending resolution of Indian 
Creek Road ROW and County approval of VCVP Village Station site 
plan.  VCVP site plan approval by County is still in process.  There 
has been no further discussions with the new owner of the 
Weston residential parcels.  County VMT regulations have 
slowed down the owner's planning processes.  No Activity in 
May.  

56170 Woods Valley Golf Course Seasonal Storage 16-17 $450,000 In-House 0% 0%
Fernando

Carrillo

Staff continuing to work with San Pasqual Economic Development 
Corporation to develop additional seasonal storage facilities on the 
golf course.  No Activity in May.

56260 Grinder Pump Flow Meter Installation 21-22 $72,000 In-House 0% 0%
Fernando

Carrillo

Staff is developing an RFQ for installation of the flow meters at 
various commercial properties that are connected to the South Village 
Low Pressure sewer collection system.  No Activity in May.

56320
North Village Lift Station
Design

16-17 $290,000
Kennedy/Jenks

(Preliminary Design)
10% 10%

Fernando
Carrillo

Preliminary design complete.  Lift Station site requirements identified.  
Site acquisition pending county approval of Village Station (VCVP) 
development plans.  No Activity in May.

Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility Expansion Projects

Lower Moosa Canyon Water Reclamation Facility Projects

Capital Funded  Projects Summary Page 5 of 6 May 2023



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
TABLE III - CAPITAL FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

Apr May

May 2023
Comments

Contractor / 
Consultant

Acct.
No.

Project Name   
F.Y.

Author-
ized

Total
Budget

Project 
Manager

55330
Series 1 Bond Issuance Costs
CFD 2020-1

21-22 $350,000 
BBK,  Fieldman-
Rolapp, Koppel & 

Gruber
90% 90%

Wally 
Grabbe

Staff previously met on-line with the SWRCB staff to discuss a path 
forward that would be mutually agreeable.  VCMWD finance team 
prepared and submitted a written proposal supporting our request to 
add the CFD as a pledged security to the SRF Loan and not prepay 
the CFD share.  SWRCB staff provided no commitment to a 
timeframe for their review.  Staff continues to follow up the 
SWRCB regarding comments on the submittal.  No comments 
were received in May.  

55340
Orchard Run Lift Station
Construction

21-22 $3,850,000
GSE Construction

($3,531,471)
90% 90%

Fernando
Carrillo

Contractor continuing to complete punchlist  items. Project will 
be considered complete in June.

57030 WVR Wastewater O&M Manual Development 17-18 $90,000 In-House 6% 6%
Fernando

Carrillo
Engineering staff and Wastewater staff have started reviewing 
existing O&M and are developing a new format. No Activity in May.

57510 WVR WRF HMI Upgrade 21-22 $25,000
Interface 

Automation
5% 5%

Fernando
Carrillo

WVR WRF HMI Upgrade is scheduled to start after the  Water 
SCADA HMI Conversion Project is completed.  No Activity in May.

57880
Woods Valley Ranch WRF Waste Discharge 
Permit Requirements
Salt Nutrient Management Plan (SNMP)

15-16 $90,000 In-House 5% 5%
Wally 

Grabbe
Scheduled start in delayed to July '23

Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility Expansion Projects, continued.

Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility Projects

Capital Funded  Projects Summary Page 6 of 6 May 2023



020, 120, 121, 500, 590, 730, 770, 780

53030, 040, 130, 320, 450, 540, 541

303

670

690

56170

415

412

417

57030, 510, 880

513

080

56120, 260, 320

307

200

420

150

401

401

53290

460

910

230

403

404

404
55340

55330
^

WOODS VALLEY RD

MESA VE RDE DR

FRUITVALE RD

JES
M

O
N

D

DE
N

E

RD

COOL VALLEY RD

G
U

E
JIT

O
R

D

M
IL

L
E

R
 R

D

BETSWORTH RD

CIR
C
LE

R DR

N
LA

K
E

W
O

H
L

F
O

R
D

R
D

PA R
A

D
IS

E
MOU

N

TAINR
D

M
T
N

M
E

A
D

O
W

R
D

PAUMA HEIGHTS RD

LAK
E

WOH

LF
O

R
D

R
D

COUS
ER

C
A

N
Y

O
N

R
D

MC NALLY
R

D

N
B

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

OLD
CASTLE RD

W LILAC
RD

C
O

L
E

G
R

A
D

E
R

D

L
IL

A
C

R
D

4

5
2

3

1
VALLEY CENTER RD

Portions of this DERIVED PRODUCT Contain geographic information Copyrighted by SanGIS. All Rights Reserved. 4/3/2023  - Y:\GISProjects\BoardReportMaps\Dist_Proj_Plats\Capital\.distprojects_capital.mxd

LEGEND

16-06-78-56XXX

01-06-78-51XXX

13-06-78-53XXX

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
Engineering Department

17-06-78-57XXX

(55XXX)
(53XXX)

(56XXX)
15-06-78-55XXX

(57XXX)

(XXX)



                                                                     May 2023 
July 17, 2023                                                             10                                                Status Report                                                      

G. FUNDING REQUESTS: 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan Application.  Final Budget Approval (FBA) of the 
Installment Sales Agreement by the SWRCB for the 2020 Pipeline Projects was received in 
March ‘23.  With the FBA completed staff can now submit for reimbursement of construction 
expenses.  Staff submitted Disbursement Request No. 2 for the $3.2M in construction 
expenses the District has funding through March ’23. 

FY23 Community Grant.  While reviewing the application requirements for the $3.06M 
Community Grant that was awarded to VCMWD for the Lilac Road Pipeline Replacement 
Project, the EPA contact recommended shifting the funding to a similar project that was not 
currently under construction.  Because the Lilac Road project was already under 
construction, there may difficulties in demonstrating compliance with the NEPA (National 
Environmental Policy Act) and BABAA (Buy America Build America Act) grant requirements.  
With a new project these grant requirements can be addressed in design and compliance 
assured.  Staff requested the EPA file, what is referred to as a “Technical Correction” to shift 
the grant funding from the Lilac Road Pipeline Replacement Project to the Rodriquez Road 
Pipeline Replacement Project.  The EPA contact indicated that the regional EPA office had 
contacted the congressional sponsor offices to make sure that they did not oppose our 
requested change and all offices okayed it. The EPA will package our request with the other 
technical corrections from all of the regions and submit them for approval from the 
appropriations committees in July.  This process is well established and they do not 
anticipate that there will be issues with the approval process and should have an answer 
around the end of the July. 

 

H. SEMINARS/MEETINGS: 

5/2/23 – M. Powers & M. Wick attended the virtual SDCWA Regional Water Loss Control 
Group Meeting. 
 
5/18/23 – M. Powers & M. Wick attended the virtual DWR 3rd Thursday Water Loss webinar. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                                                                     May 2023 
July 17, 2023                                                             11                                                Status Report                                                      

IV.    FINANCE DEPARTMENT: 
 

A.    COMPARISON OF STATISTICS:  
      MAY FY to Date FY to Date  

        2023 2022-23 2021-22 
 

Bills Mailed:   10,423          113,958           106,934 
 

    Actions for Non-Payment:      
    Notices Mailed  1,212 13,956            12,812 
    48 Hr. Phone Calls  461             5,347          4,757 
    Meters Flow Restricted             0                  16             10 
    Accounts Liened  5 31 30 
 Lien Notices Mailed  5 132 112 

    Accounts Transferred                     43                  673                 823 
 

 

 MAY MAY MAY 
Customer Counts:  2023 2022 2021                    

Active Water Accounts:      
         Certified Ag - PSAWR  633 644 1,070 

M & I   9,095 8,789 8,068 
Fire Meters    1,933             1,638       1,346 

Total Active Accounts  11,661 11,071 10,484 
Inactive Water Accounts:   
  PSAWR  47 37 88 
  M & I   713 714 677 
 Fire Meters              136                 135    137 

Total Inactive Accounts  896 886 902 
 
Total Water Accounts  12,557 11,957 11,386 

 
Active Wastewater Accounts 

Moosa   2,496 2,492  2,490 
    Woods Valley                  919       668     393 

 
Total Wastewater Accounts  3,415 3,160 2,883 

      
 Acre-Feet Value  

Interim MWD Agricultural Program:    

July 1994 through DEC 2012     513,882.8 $63,681,802 
MWD RTS Estimated Savings: 

JAN 2003 through DEC 2012     17,884,325 
SDCWA PSAWR: 

July 1998 through MAY 2023   486,022.1 32,855,170 
SDCWA Emergency Storage Est. Savings: 

    JAN 2003 through MAY 2023    34,949,508 
SDCWA Supply Reliability Est. Savings: 

 JAN 2016 through MAY 2023     4,737,887 

TOTAL MWD & SDCWA DISCOUNTS                           $154,108,692   



                                                          May 2023  

July 17, 2023                                                            12                                                Status Report                                                      

      B.    MEETINGS: 
 

05/08/2023 – 05/11/2023  
Jim attended the ACWA JPIA Spring Conference,  Monterey CA. 

 
5/16/2023 9:00 am – 10:00 am 
Vanessa, Beatriz and Danielle attended the Springbrook Cirrus Migration Finance Modules 
Working Session with Rachel McGraw. 
 
5/23/2023 9:00 am – 10:00 am 
Vanessa, Beatriz and Danielle attended the Springbrook Cirrus Migration Federal Tax Table 
and Other Review. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                          May 2023  

July 17, 2023                                                            13                                                Status Report                                                      

V. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT: 
 

A. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS − 
 

SCADA HMI Improvements – Wonderware HMI system replacement at Moosa with Ignition 
HMI software has been completed. Replacement of the HMI system for the water system is 
currently in planning stages. 
 

Asset Management System – Phase 2 of Cityworks development and deployment is in 
progress, which includes backflow, fleet maintenance, storeroom modules and integration 
with GIS and ERP systems. 
 

Boardroom Technology Upgrade – The existing technology in the board room is being 
replaced with a new high definition media system. In-room video presentation system and 
video system wiring upgrades are in progress. Some components are backordered due to 
supply chain delays. 
 

Server Visualization and Storage – The project upgrades the data center virtual computing 
environment to Windows 2022 server-based system. This includes redundant server cluster 
with automatic failover, software licenses, and core network switch upgrade in the data 
center. The existing server will be relocated to a remote site and used for data replication, 
back, and disaster recovery. Server hardware has been set up. Cluster system and storage 
arrays have been configured. Backup systems have been integrated. Testing has been 
concluded and deployment has begun. All virtual machines are currently being migrated to 
the new cluster. 

 
B. GENERAL ACTIVITY − 
 

SCADA Upgrades – Continuous rolling upgrades are being done to replace older devices 
such as radios, cameras, network switches, and Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) units 
with newer models, which are faster and more reliable. Video cameras are being replaced 
with event-driven models that are capable of detecting humans and vehicles. 
 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Upgrades – GIS staff has deployed web maps and 
user portals within the software, and GIS databases and maps have been integrated with 
the Cityworks Asset Management System. The system is being continuously enhanced and 
actively used by District personnel. 
 

Backflow Application – Work is continuing to integrate the District’s Backflow application with 
Cityworks and GIS. Data replication components have been developed to allow backflow 
data to populate Cityworks inspections where it will be available for remote data entry by the 
tester. The integration is currently being tested. 

 
C. SYSTEM STATUS –  

 

 All systems operated normally during the month of April. 

 
D. MEETINGS –  

 

 No meetings were attended in May 2023. 
 
 



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  DEPARTMENT

CAPITAL FUNDED PROJECTS SUMMARY

Apr May

51040 Boardroom Technology Upgrade 16-17  $       32,135 In-house 98% 98%

Project will upgade the Audio/Video presentation technology 

in the Boardroom. New sound system was installed in January 

2018. Video live streaming system was installed with 

upgraded cameras. New monitors were installed on the dais. 

Video presentation system upgrade is in progress.

Ando Pilve

51480 Asset Management System 18-19 88,704$        

In-house, 

external 

consultant 

98% 98%

Cityworks Asset Management System's implementation is in 

progress. Deployment is completed with DigAlert, work order 

modules, and GraniteNet sewer inspection system. Backflow, 

fleet, and storeroom modules are in development.

Ando Pilve

51240 Server Virtualization & Storage 22-23 97,423$        In-house 80% 85%

Project will upgrade the data center virtual computing 

environment to Windows 2022 server based system. This 

includes redundant server cluster with automatic failover, 

software licenses, and core network switch upgrade in the 

data center. Server hardware has been set up, system and 

storage arrays have been configured. Deployment is 

progressing. Virtual Machines are currently being migrated to 

the new cluster.

Ando Pilve

Contracts

Comments

Project 

Manager/ 

Coordinator

Project 

No.
Name

F.Y. 

Auth- 

orized

                 

Total Budget Contractor / 

Consultant

% Complete

Capital Funded Projects Summary

G:\BOARD Agendas, Minutes, etc\Monthly Status Reports\2023-05 May (07.17.23)\2023-05 IT CI project summary.xls

IT Dept.

Page 1 of 1



                                                          May 2023  

July 17, 2023                                                            14                                                Status Report                                                      

VI. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS: 
 

A.   GENERAL MANAGER’S MEETINGS AND ACTIVITIES FOR MAY 2023 −   
 

05/01/23 – SDCWA Labor Negotiations Work Group (GA) 
     VCMWD Regular Board Meeting (GA & GO); 
   SDCWA - JPIC Meeting (GO); 
 

05/02/23 – Agenda Meeting (GA &GO); 
   RCD / SDLAFCO Ag Planning Meeting (GA); 
   ACWA Clean Fleets Co-ordination Call (GA); 
   SDCWA Water Loss Meeting (GO); 
 

05/03/23 – Field Tour of Joband Capital Sites (GA); 
   Lake Wohlford Annexation Call (GA); 
 

05/04/23 – SD County Farm Bureau Board Meeting (GA); 
     LWC WRF Solar Start-up (GA); 

  

                   05/05/23 – Cityworks Consultant Meeting - Fleet (GO); 
  
         05/08-12/23 – ACWA Spring Conference, Monterey CA (GA); 

 

05/15/23 – VCMWD Regular Board Meeting (GA); 
 

05/16/23 – Agenda Meeting (GA & GO); 
   SDCWA General Manager’s Meeting (GA); 
   SDCWA Board Budget Work Shop (GA); 
 

05/18/23 – SDCWA Legislative Meeting (GO); 
 

05/19/23 – North County GM’s Meeting (GA); 
   ACWA Officer Election Committee (GA); 
  

05/22/23 – SDCWA Labor Negotiations  Work Group (GA); 
  SDCWA Water Master Plan Update (GA); 
  

05/23/23 – SDCWA A & F Committee Pre-Board Meeting (GA); 
   ACWA Infrastructure Task Force Meeting (GA); 
                  ACWA Energy Committee Call (GA); 
  

05/24/23 – SDCWA North County Caucus Meeting (GA); 
   SDCWA Pre-Board Coordination Lunch (GA) 
   ACWA Water Use Efficiency Meeting (GO); 
 

05/25/23 – SDCWA Board Meeting (GA);  
 

05/30/23 – “A” Team Staff Meeting (GA);    
 

05/31/23 – “B” Team Staff Meeting (GA) 
                                  

                               *Key: GA – Gary Arant; GO Gaby Olson 
 
 
 



                                                          May 2023  

July 17, 2023                                                            15                                                Status Report                                                      

B. Water Conservation and Public Outreach − 
 

Staff prepared the 100 entries received for voting and are in the process of selecting the top 
entries, as well as a way to recognize the participants and winners at a future board meeting. 

 

C. Personnel − 
 

1) Regular Full-Time Employees, as of May 31, 2023: 
 

                    Funds         Budgeted Employed 
  

    Water           66                          65                        
      Wastewater            6                             6                         

          Total           72                          71 
                               
                 

2) Pending Retirements − 

a) John Martinueau, Sr. C&M Technician – December 5, 2023 

b) Wally Grabbe, District Engineer/Deputy GM – March 29, 2024      

 
 
 
 
Compiled By:    Submitted By:  
 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
Kirsten N. Peraino, Board Secretary  Gary T. Arant, General Manager  
 
 
 


	7/17/2023 Board Meeting AGENDA
	1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, June 5, 2023
	2. Survey of Auditing and General Counsel Service Costs and Notification of Annual Contractual Fee Increase from General Counsel
	3. Audit Demands and Wire Disbursements
	4. Expense Reimbursement Disclosures (4/1/2023–6/30/2023) per Government CodeSection 53065.5
	5. 2023-05-31 Treasurer's Report.pdf
	DETAIL
	GRAPHS
	GRAPHS (2)
	TRANSACTIONS

	6. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-22 Correcting a Typographical Error in Resolution No. 2023-21.
	7. Public Hearing to Consider Approving and Levying the Approved Woods Valley Ranch WRF Service Area Sewer Service Charges (Service Area 1), Sewer Service Charges (Service Area 2), and Grinder Pump Maintenance Charges (Service Area 2) on the Property Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2023-2024
	8. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2023-24 Approving and Levying the Approved Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility Service Area Sewer Standby Fees (Service Areas 1 & 2) on the Property Tax Roll for FY 2023-2024
	9. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2023-25 Approving and Levying Annual Assessments for Assessment District No. 2012-1 on the Property Tax Roll for FY 2023-2024
	10. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2023-26 Approving and Levying Special Taxes for Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 on the Property Tax Roll for FY 2023-2024
	11. San Gabriel Reservoir Change Order No. 3
	Board Report
	Resolution No. 2023-27

	12. Lilac Road Change Order No. 4 
	Board Report
	Attachment No. 1 Change Order No. 4
	Resolution 2023-28

	13. Request to Adopt Ordinance No. 2023-09 Setting the FY 2023-24 Fixed Charge Special Assessments for Unpaid Charges for Water and Other Services
	14. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2023-29 Rescinding Resolution No. 2022-23 to Deactivate Provisions of Level 2, Concurring with the General Manager to Deactivate Level 1 of the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan, and Preserve Implementation of the SWRCB Emergency Regulations
	15. San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Board Meeting Summary and Possible ActionRegarding AB399 (Boerner) Proposing a Countywide Vote on Detachment from the SDCWA
	16. General Information (May 2023 Status Report)



